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Strategic Report

The Directors consider that the content of this Strategic Report includes the detail that is required by regulations and is
fair, balanced and understandable, as required by s.414(c) of the Companies Act 2006.

Principal activities

The principal activiti/ o'f MGM Advantage Life Limited (the ‘Company") is.the provision of retirement income solutions in
the United Kinédom including annuity and drawdown business and operating a trust-based SIPP. The Compahy is a wholly- -
-owned subsidiary of MGM Advantage Holdings Limited (incorporated in the United Kingdom), which in turn is a wholly-
owned subsidial:y of The Canada Life Group (U.K.) Limited incorporated in the United Kingdom. The Company is ultimately

owned by Power Corporation of Canada (incorporated in Canada).

The Company is regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority ('FCA’) and authorised and regulated by the Prudential
Regulation Authority ('"PRA’).

N

Business Review

During the financial year the Combany successfully completed its preparation for a Part VII transfer of its entire long-term
insurance business to Canada Life Limited, and, also launched further enhancements of The Retirement Account product

‘TRA’ incorporating a trust-based SIPP and also increasing.the range of investment funds provided to customers.
Part VII Transfer of Insurance Business to Canada Life Limited

On 18 December 2019, and pursuant to Part VII of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000, the High Court of Justice -
approved the transfer of the entire long-term insurance business of the Company to Canada Life Limited, and, this
completed on 1 January 2020. The tranrsfef' compfised assets and liabilities in respect of Guaranteed Annuity, Flexible
Investment Income Annuity lines of business, TRA personal pension plané and insurance policies written in .connection :
with TRA trust-based SIPP business line. The transfér also included its wholly owned subéid'iary MGM Advantage Trustee

Limited, and associated insurance operational and business contracts, including reassurance arrangements.

The Company has IFRS equity of £284m as at end 2019 arising from capital injections and retained earnings.' The valuation
of the transferring business was done at fair value based on Solvency II regulations which require additional capital to be
held. The consideration agreed with Canada Life Limitgd for the transferring business is £81.9m and the 2020 Compan;/
accounts will recognise a loss of £202.2m in respect of the difference between the 2019 year-end IFRS net asset value of
the’ transferred business and the consideration received which reflects the fair market valué of the transferred
business. The unaudited Solvency II ratio of Eligible owr'1 funds to SCR will increase as a result of the transfer as there
will be a material reduction in SII risk capitai (SCR) to offset the reduction in SII Eligible own funds as a result of the IFRS
loss. A sﬁmhary of fhe transferring assets and liabilities and those subsequently retained by the Company is set out in
note 18.

The consideration for the transfer was settled by a £75m Promissory Note, which was issued by Canada Life Limited to
the Company, payable upon demand and bearing interest equivalent to similar short-dated obligations, and, the remainder-

of £6.9m to be settled in cash.
Product Development

on7 May 2019, Canada Life SIPP Trustee Company Limited ('SIPP Trustee’) was incorporated with £1 of issued ordinary
share capital, 100% subscribed for by tHe Company for £1 consideration. The SIPP Trustee was subsequently renamed
Canada Life SIPP Trustee Limited on 22 May 2019. During November 2019 the Compan'y launched a TRA -trust-based
SIPP, which provides for regular pension savings and a comprehensive range of non-insurance OEIC investment funds in

addition to insurance funds, annuity obtions aﬁd the prodqct fiexibility that existed for the TRA personal pension plan.
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Strategic Report (cont )

The SIPP Trustee is the legal owner of the SIPP assets, with the member customer as beneficiary. The Company, as SIPP
operator, is responsible for the day to day administration and operation of the SIPP, and Canada Life Limited is the insurer
res_pénsible for making payments QUe to the SIf’P_ Trustee in respect to insurance policies written in connectionrwith the
product. Substantially all TRA personal pension plan members elected to take advantage of the increased benefits arising
from the trust-based SIPP and transfevrre'd their personal pension pian to the SIPP.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Company has an e_stabhlished Risk Management framework in place for the identification, assessment, manaéement

and monitoring of all risks.

-A comprehensive explanation of the management of risk undertaken by the Company is set out in note 27 to these
financial statements, and note 28 sets out the Company’s financial resources held to meet those risks. Following the Part

" VII transfer of insurance business on 1 January 2020 risks previously associated with that business have been removed.
Brexit Risks ‘

-The UK left the European Union (‘EU’) on 31 January 2030 with a withdrawal deal. Following its departure the UK entered
into a transition arrangement with the ambition to complete the withdrawal from the EU on 31 December 2020.

The Company’s products are solely available'to members or former members of UK based pension' schemes and
consequently the customer base is almost entirely UK resident. Similarly the Company’s employees and suppliers are also

principally UK based and therefore the main risk to the Company relates to potential economic impacts arising from Brexit.

At the time of writing, markets are pricing for an orderly Brexit withdrawal, however, given the Part VII transfer of

insurance business there is not expected to be a material impact on the Company.

COVID-19 Risks

'The ongoing coronavirus pandemic (COVID-19)‘ is an emerging risk to which the Company is exposed. The Company is
monitoring the situation closely and has made preparations to ensure that it will continue to operate effectively and ensure
the safety ahd well-being of customers, Group employees and wider communities.k Servite continuity plans are in
operation, with Group employees working remotehly to maintain service to customers. The Company continues to review
service standards and hoid regular communication with outsource providers, and their response to the pandemic has

been very robust and highly collaborative and they continue to provide full services to our customers.

After the Part VII transfer the Compan{/ has net assets of £81 9m consisting of cash and amounts owed from a fellow
group company, Canada Life Limited, for the Part VII transfer wh|ch is payable on demand. The impact of COVID-19 on
the post Part VII Balance sheet of the Company is not significant. After the Part VII transfer, on 1 January 2020, the
Company’s Mlnlmum Capital Reqmrement (‘MCR) solvency ratio was 498% (unaudited), with the Solvency Capital
Requirement ('SCR’) being Iower than the MCR. The Company currently contlnues to operate within Solvency 1I regulatory
capital guidelines and in excess of the MCR and SCR. Since the Part VII transfer the Company has applied to the PRA/FCA
to change its regulatory permissions from an insurer to a MiFID investment firm, entirely regulated by the FCA which
would ha.ve lower applicable solvency requirements. Therefore, the Company considers it has sufficient capital and liquidity
to continue operating even if growth in the SIPP product is significantly slower than anticipated as a result of COVID-19.

The outbreak is having an irnpact on global economies and markets to which the Company is exposed and should tnis
irnpact be sustained, or lead to adverse impacts in sales or withdrawals, it will continue tb impact on the Company’s
) performance These impacts will depend on future developments, which are highly uncertain. The Company has robust
governance structures and processes in place which support continuous monitoring of the Company’s solvency posmon

based on up to date market information.
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Strategic Report (con4t.)

Regulatory ‘ :

The Company uses a.Partial Internal Model (PIM) for determining solvency capital requirements. Following PRA approval
of The Canada Life Group (U.K.) Limited PIM in December 2019, The Company is using the credit spread component of
that PIM for year-end 2019 }egulatory reporting with the associated The Canada Life Group (U.K.) Limited governance
applying. The Transitional Measure on Technical Provisions was recalculated with effect from 31 December 2019 (as part

of an industry-wide two-yearly requirement from-the regulator).

Throughout the year the Company stringently managed its solvency position having regard to the risk exposures set out
in note 27. As a consequence of adverse volatility of market conditions and cn{edit risk rates arising mainly from Brexit
uncertainty the issued ordinary share capital was increased by a total consideration of £84m during the year, provided by
its immediate parent company MGM Advantage Holdings Limited. _

Following the Part VII transfer of insurance business to Canada Life Limited on 1 January 2020, th»e Company has applied
to the PRA/FCA to cﬁange its regulatory permissions from an insurer to a MiFID'investment firm, entirely regulated by the
FCA with lower applicable solvency requirements. Until the variation of permissions is approved the Company will remain

subject only to fhé Solvency II capital regime. At 1 January 2020 the Company’s solyency ratio on this basis was 498%.

Economic risks

Managing the duration and profile-of assets against corresponding policyholder liabilities is a key risk of the Company as
mismatches could 'adversely affect the surplus capital avlailable. The Company is subject to credit exposure; a widening
of credit spreads decreases the value of bonds held against policyholder liabilities, however, as the majority of the bond
assets are held in a Matching Adjustment (MA) Portfolio there is a largely offsetting reduction to the value'of policy
liabilities. Where a bond default occurs there would be a loss of asset value with no offsetting reduction to liabilities. Also,
where bond rating downgrades occur; the MA benefit té policy liabilities is reduced and so the value of the liabilities would
increase resulting in a ‘re_duction to available capital together with an increase in requiréd capital. Liabilities backed by
assets in the MA portfolio are broadly cash flow matched and the liability andv asset arhounts move closely together in
response to changes in risk free interest rates. The Company has a range of coﬁtrol‘s in place to manage economic risks
and to take any remedial or mitigating action as necessary. ‘Further information is provided in note 27. Following the

transfer of insurance business, economic risks associated with that business no longer apply.

Non-Economic risks

The key non-economic risk is longevity. Assumptions-are made as to future mortality experience. If future mortality
experience turns out to be'lig_hter than expected then the-cost of policy benefits will be higher than the provisions made.
This is significantly mitigated through the use of reinsurance. Since the start of 2016 the proportion of fongevity risk

reinsured on new annuity business has been 75%. For business wri&en prior to 2016 the proportion reassured is 50%.

_ Other non-economic risks include expense risk and operational risk, however, the exposure to these is reduced through
the outsourcing of Customer Services, Information Technology and the Project Change Function to Equiniti and of

investment accounting and unit pricing administration services to Mobius Life Limited.

Since the transfer of insurance business on 1 January 2020, including the transfer of expense risk and operational risk,

non-economic risks previously associated with that business no longer apply.
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Strategic Report (cont.)

Pricing assumption risks

A number of assumptions are made based on past customer ekperience and a'vailab]e market data, including longevity,
credit spreads, performance of equity release mortgages (ERMs), interest rates-and expenses. The Company licenses an -
underwriting system from Hannover Re to assist with the pricing process, specifically' in the determination of underwriting,
risk that the Company chooses to accept. If business is priced incorrectly it could adversely affect the balance sheet
because the technical provisions required for this business could ultimately be higher than had been assumed in pricing.
Also, the actual experience may not be the same as the pricing assumptions and this will impact the balance sheet as the
business develops. Finally, the rates quoted. are guaranteed for a period and there is a risk that economic conditions could

move against the Company in that guarantee period.

Since the transfer of insurance business onl January 2020, including-the transfer of pricing assumption risks associated

with that business, these risks no longer apply.

Product developments

In 2019 sales of TRA Retirement Pension Drawdown levels were down to £27.6m from £35.4m year on year as

management continued to maﬁage new business levels to ensure sufficient regulatory capital was held. During 2019

“further advancements - were ma'de \to the TRA product, with a trust-based SIPP launching in November 2019. TRA
policyholders were contacted to obtain their consent to convert their TRA policy from the trust-based personal pension
Plan structure to the .new trust-based SIPP structure. The trust-based SIPP provides for regular pension savings and a
comprehensive range of non-insurance OEIC'investment funds in addition to insurance funds, annuity options and the

product flexibility that existed for the TRA personal pension plan.

Future developments

~ .
The Part VII transfer of insurance business to Canada Life Limited on 1 January 2020 was a major change for the business

which reduced the exposure to risks and future solvency capital requirements associated with that business.

- The Company will be changing from an insurer to a FCA regulated MiFiD investment firm. Since 1 November 2019 The
Company is a SIPP provider, and remains focused upon the development of its retirement income solutions as a MiFID
firm through its TRA product, and association with Canada Life as the provider of insurance products within the SIPP.

. -

Climate change
Sustainability risk is the risk of loss arising from the inabilityAto maintain business operations and sustain the Company’s

growth due 'to negative externalities such as environmental degradation, social risk issues and climate _change. The

Company may experience direct or indirect financial, operational or reputational impact stemming from these externalities.

The Company’s business and financial condition may be édversely impacted if the Company does not adequate|y prepare
for or manage both physiéal and transition risks related to climate change. Climate-related risks may also adversely affect
invested assets, customers, reinsurance counterparties and suppliers, which in-turn may negatively impact the Company’s

operations and financial condition.

Physical risks are associated with direct and indirect damage from weather-related events ‘or environmental disasters.
Climate-related e;/ents may negatively impact the Company’s insurance and reinsurance liabilities, the value of the
Company’s equity release mortgages and their ability- to generate income and business continuity. The Company may
experience direct or indirect financial, operational or reputational impact stemming from environmeﬁtal ‘risk events. For
e)kample, liability under environmental pi'otection laws resulting from the Company’s equit‘y release mortgage loan

portfolio may harm the Company’s f‘inancial strength and reduce its profitability.
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Strategic Report (cont.)

Physical risks can also manifest by causing shifts in mortality and morbidity rates over the short and long terms. The

Company’s results of operations and financial performance may be adversely affected if mortality and morbidity rates

deviate from management’s assumptions, as noted under “Insurance Risk”.
p

Transition risks refer to reputational, market, regulatory, policy, legal and technology-related risks thal: arise from the
shift toward a lower-carbon economy. The Company’s exposure to transition risk consists primarily of exposure to credit
risks arising from its investment portfolio, as industries adjust to legal and policy changes, changing business models and
consumer behaviour. Through debt investments or supplier relationships, the Company may also become subject to the
negative impacts of transition risks on third parties. The Company S Fnancnal condltlon may be negatively impacted by
costs associated with changes in enwronmental laws and requlations and regulatory enforcement. Further, the Company’s
reputation, fmanmal performance and ability to generate business may suffer if the Company fails to meet stakeholder

expectatlons on environmental risk mitigation practices and carbon reporting.

Statement on directors' duty to promote the success of the company
The Board of Directors of the Company (the "Board”) must act in the way they consider, in good faith, would be most
likely to promote the success of the company for the benefit of its members as a whole, and in doing so have regard to

(amongst other matters) those laid out in Section 172 of the.Companies Act 2006.

The Board is coll‘ectively responsible for the long-term success of the Company and its subsidiaries. It sets Company
values and culture and ensures that obligations to-its shareholder, customers and other stakeholders are understood and

met:

The Board is responsnble for, amongst other thlngs, settmg the Companys strategy, approving its risk appetite ‘and
overseelng |mplementatlon of that strategy. This has due regard for all its stakeholders, including shareholders, regulators,
customers, staff and business partners who contribute to the success of the company and the achievement of its strategy.
The Board (which is the Company’s Board) provides leadership of the Company .withln a framework of prudent and
effective controls that enables risks to be assessed and managed. The Board also sets the Company"s c‘ulture, values and
standards and oversees the way in which culture is emoedded by executive management. In pa'rticular, the Board
recognises that a fundamental component of the Company’s goyernance is the obligation to treat customers fairly. The
Board approves the components of the risk management framework and sets the risk strategy for the Company in relation

to the types and level of risk that the Company is prepared to assume.

The Company maintains a Capital Management policy which ensures it always has sufficient eligible Own Funds to cover
the Solvency Capital Requirements ("SCR"} and Minimum. Capital Requirements (*MCR"”) at all times and with an
appropriate buffer. Directors consider dividends with full regard for this in policy. This policy is monitored regularly by
management and' the relevant Boards, Board Committees and Shareholders, which during 2019 resulted in a total of

£84m in further capital being obtained from its Shareholder.
(v

The Company also undertakes an Own Risk and Solve.ncy Assessment ("ORSA") exercise at least annually, or when the
risk profile of the Company materially changes. The 'ORSA exercise incorporates the business planning process, which is
typically considered over a three-year time horizon and includes projections of the amounts of eligible Own Funds, SCR
and MCR In 2019, the ORSA Report was produced on a combined basis with CLL in antlcnpatlon of the planned Part VII

transfer N

The Company ensures that all people who effectively run the Company or have other key functions are fit to provide
sound and prudent management through their professional qyalifications, knowledge and experience and are proper by
. being of good repute and integrity. The Board has ultimate responsibility for the performance and strategy of the Company
and it delegates authority within the organisation as it sees fit. . '
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Strategic Report (cont.)

The Company’s workforce is employed by a service company within the Group. The Company has a general Staff Forum

which meets quarterly. The aim of the forum is to represent the views of the workforce, communicate with management,
provide feedback to the workforce and consult with them on key issues. The'Company also conducts a workforce
engagement survey every year. The responses to this survey are presented to'the Board which provides an important
level of feedback. This helps to identify aspects of the business which the Company may need to improve on as well as

those which it is implementing successfully.

During the year the directors approved the further development its product and market proposition with the launch of the
TRA trust-based SIPP. This product launch was also conimunicated to existing TRA policyholders prowdung the opportunlty
to convert from the TRA trust -based personal pension plan to the SIPP, as set out wnthln the product and market
proposition section of this Strategic Report.

The Company makes every effort to ensure it works with suppliers in line with their Code of Conduct and the supply chain
is assessed with regard to the Modern Slavery Act 2015. Outso'ur,cing arrangements and professional service contracts
are governed by an Outsourcing and Supplier Risk Operating Policy and Standard. As with customers, suppliers are treated
fairly with regular communication and timely financial payments. Vital suppliers are assigned a relationship manager to
maintain open dialogue and implement regular monitoring and assessment to ensgre the continued effe‘ctiyeness of the

arrangement.

"The Company’s customers are at the core of its business and at the forefront of its strategy and service. The Company is‘
committed to dealing with customers honestly and fairly. This is embedded in the culture, values and Code of Business
Conduct. Our vision is to hetp build better futures and be'a world class financial services provider. Putting customers at

the heart of everythlng we do and working in line with our values of people, excellence, integrity and together

During the year the dlrectors also continued to engage with policyholders, regulators and independent advisors in respect
“to its proposed Part VII Scheme to transfer insurance business to Canada Life Limited. All affected policyholders received
correspondence containing a detailed guide to the Scheme, -an explanation of the sources from which they could obtain
further information about the Scheme and communicating their right to make representations if they considered they
might be ad\}ersely affected by the Scheme. Both the Company and Canada Life Limited also arranged for adverts to be
published in certain national newspapers and for information to be made available on their respeciive websites. The
directors concluded the security of the transferring policyholders’ benefits would be enhanced by the Scheme, whilst
recognising the regulatory constraints that would otherwise continue to limit the levels of néw business that could be

written by the Company if the Scheme did not proceed. The Scheme was completed on 1 January 2020.

Whilst the transfer represents a material IFRS loss of £202m for the Company, this was due to the consideration for the
transfer being at a fair market value, determined using a Solvency II basis of valuation, under, which the overall loss was
£34m before tax. ‘ -

Result for the year

The Company reported an IFRS loss before tax for the year ended 31 December 2019 of £2.0m (2018: £30.3m loss).

©
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Strategic Report (cont.)

Key performance indica;tors' ('KP1s’)

The following financial KPIs are used by the Board to monitor performance of the Company. -

2019 ‘2018

) £'m £'m
Gross premiums written i . 90.2 T 107.3
TRA assets under management 105.9 . 66.0
Operating expenses ' o 13.2 - 206
Loss before tax , (2.0) (30.3)
Total equity . E . 284.1 200.6
Unaudited Solvency II ratio of ellglble own funds to SCR . 123% 136%

Gross premiums written

Gross premiums written in 2019 contihued to be impacted by the Solvency 1I regime as the Company constrained the

new business written to ensure it maintained its capital strength, particularly given the economic uncertainty from Brexi;.

TRA assets under management

‘Assets under management represent amounts invested by customers in TRA for which the Company earns ongoing fees. ’
The increasing asset levels reflects the continuing investment in improving the TRA product, with the trust-based SIPP

Iaunchmg in November 2019.

Operating expenses

Operating costs arising in 2019 are predominantly for policyholder administration service fees, which were £10.5m
compared to £16.0m in 2018. This was reflective of a reduced cost base within the Company’s service company, MGM

Advantage Services Limited, resulting in less compensatlon being required to cover the fellow subsidiary’s costs

'Loss before tax

The IFRS loss before tax represenfs the level of profit or loss coh’tributing to regulatory capital and potentially available
for distribution to shareholders. The loss before tax is considered a measure of performance for the Company with the
current year loss reflecting a reduction in the return expected on Equity Release Mortgage assets following a review of

e

the assumptions relating to those assets.

Total equity '
The total equity of the Company increased in the year despite the loss after tax, as £84m capital was received during the
- year from its parent company MGM Advantage Holdings Limited. The increase in capital was predominantly to support the

impact of volatile mafkets, in part due to Brexit uncertainty, upon solvency requirements.

Unaudlted Solvency II ratio of eligible own funds to SCR

The Company met its capital requirements under the Solvency II regime dunng 2019, W|th the capital received from MGM
Advantage Holdlngs Limited during 2019 strengthéning the position in the- year. Refer to note 28 for further information

on the capital resources of the Company. ' . ’ !
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Strategic Report (cont.)

Summary

2019 has seen the Company successfully prepare for the business to Part VII transfer into Canada Life Limited, which was
completed on 1 January 2020. Whilst the result for the year is a loss, this was primarily due to a reduction in the return
expected on Equity Re[éase Mortgage assets following a reviev_s) of the assumptions relating to those assets. The Company
has benefited from‘ lower expenses in 2019, whilst continued investment and development in TRA has seen the Company

successfully launch its new trust-based SIPP.

This report was approved by the Board of Directors of MGM Advantage Life Limited and signed on its behalf by:

Robert Craig Fazzini-Jones

Executive Director

6% Floor

110 Cannon Street . - ‘ .
London ’ ’

EC4N 6EU

24 April 2020
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Directors’ Report

The Directors present their report on the affairs of the Company, together with the financial 'staternents for the year ended
31 December 2019. '

Incorporation

The Company was registered in England and Wales on 8 February 2013. The Company is a private limited liability company
incorporated and domiciled in the United Kingdom. The Company commenced trading on 30 November 2013,

Results and dividends

The results for the year are set out in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensivel Income on page 24. The

Directors do not propose the payment of a dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: £ni‘l).
Directors

The Directors of the Company who served during the year and up to the date of signing were as follows:
Non-Executive Directors

Sir William Proby CBE

John Robert Cusins

Derek Nigel Donald Netherton
Nathan Moss '

Executive Directors

Robert Craig Fazzini-Jones -
Douglas Allan Brown

The Directors who served in the previous year were as follows: N

Michael Edward Fairey (resigned 2 January 2018)
Brian Jonathan Magnus (resigned 2 Januéry 2018)
" John Simon Bertie Smith (resigned_2 January 2018)

Directors’ indemnities - _

The Company’s articles of association provide, subject to the provisions of UK legislation, an indemnity for Directors aﬁd
officers of the Company in respect of liabilities they may incur in the discharge of their duties or in the exercise of their
powers, including any liabilities relating to the defence of any proceedings brought against them which relate to anything
done or omitted, or alleged to have been done or omitted by them in their capacity as officers or employees of the

Company.

The Company has qualifying third party indemnity provisions for the benefit of its directors and the directors of associated
companies; which were in place throughout the year and remain in force at the date of this report.

Political dpnations

There were no donations for political purposes (2018: £nil).
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Directors’ Report (cont.)

Going concern i
Having regard to the Company’s finéncial position, financial projections and its expected future performance, the Directors

" have a reasonable anticipation that the Company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future despite initial expected Iosses as the SIPP product grows. The Directors have considered the impact of
the UK’s exit from the EU and as a predomlnantly UK focused business the Company's operatlng model is not materially .

impacted by the UK’s withdrawal from the EU.

The Company held capital in excess of its required capital on a Solvency II basis throughout 2019 and both as at-31
December 2019 and 1 January 2020 prior to the completion of the Part VII transfer of insurance business to Canada Life
Limited and taking into account the run off of the Transitional Measures on Technical Provisions. The Directors have
considered the impact of Covid-19 which may delay the anticipated growth in the SIPP product, however given the excess.
capital held there is sufficient surplus to cover a delay for the foreseeable future and at least for a period of 12 monthsv
from the approval of these financial statements: In vieW of this, the annual réport and financial statements have been:

prepared on the going concern basis.

» Informatlon disclosed within the Strategic Report

In accordance wuth s414(c) of the Companies Act 2006, the Company has set out the following information wuthm the

Strategic Report on pages 3-10 whlch would otherwise be contained w:thln the Directors’ Report:
¢ Financial risk management objectives and policies; R
e Stakeholder Relationships; end
. ‘ Future developments. .

In addition, detailed information on the management of financial risk and use of financial instruments is set out within
note 27 of the financial statements. In particular the Company’s exposure to operational risk, insurance risk, market risk,

liquidity risk and credit exposure risk is disclosed within that note.

Post balance sheet events
The effective date for the Part VII transfer of insurance business including an associated subsidiéry undertaking and
various associated contracts was 1 Jénuary 2020. A more detailled explanation is set out.within the Strategic Report and

note 18 pro(fides detail of the assets and liabilities 'transferred on that date.

Since 31 December 31, 2019, the outbreak of the novel strain of coronavirus, specmcally identified as “COVID 19”, has
resulted in governments worldwide enacting emergency measures to combat the spread of the virus. A more detailed

explanation is set out within the Strategic Report and note 30 provides details of the impact on the Company.

The Company considers these events to be non-adjusting post balance sheet events under IAS 10.
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Directors’ Report (cont.)

Disclosure of information to auditors
Each of the persons who is a Director at the date of approval of this annual report confirms that, so far as the Director is

:

aware:
e there is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditors are unaware; and

¢ the Director has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a Director in order to make himself aware of

an‘y relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of that information.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of s418 of the Companies Act 2006.

Independent auditor

Deloitte LLP have indicated their willingness to be reappointed for another term and appropriate arrahgements have been

put in place for them to be deemed reappointed as the auditor in the.absence of an Annual General Meeting.

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed oﬁ its behalf by:
Robert Craig Fazzini-Jone;

Executive Director

6% Floor

- 110 Cannon Street

London, EC4N 6EU

24 April 2020
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~ Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report and the financial statements in

accordance with applicable taw and reguiations.
“f

Company law requires the Directors to prepare finahcial statements for each financial year. Under that faw the Directors .
have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
as adopted by the European Union. Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless
they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view. of the state of éffairs and profit or loss of the Company for thét

period. In preparing these financial statements, the Directors are required to:
. select suitable accounting policies and thén apply them consistently;
. make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

. state whether applicable IFRSs have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in
the financial statements; and '

. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Company

will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
Company’s transactions and disélosé with reasonable accu'ra}cy at any time the financial position of the Compahy and
enable them to ensure th;t the financial statements comply with the Companiés Act 2006. They are also responsible for
safeguarding the aésets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the preventioﬁ and detection of fraud

and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the

Company'’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements -

may differ from Iégislation in other jurisdictions.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Report on the audit of the financial statements
1. Opinion |

In our opinion the financial statements of MGM Advantage Life Limited (the.‘company’):
e give a true and fair view of the state of the company 's. affairs as at 31 December 2019 and of its Ioss
for the year then ended;

e ‘have been properly prepared in accordance with Internatlonal Flnanaal Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
as adopted by the European Union; and '

. ~ have been prepared in accordance with the’requirement's of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements which comprise:

e the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income;

o the statement of financial position; ’

» the statement of changes in equity; o

e the statement of cash flows; and

e the related notes 1 to 30 excluding the capital adequacy disclosures in Note 28 calculated in
accordance with the Solvency II regime which are marked as unaudited.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable Iaw and IFRSs as
adopted by the European Union.

2. Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International. Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities- under those standards are further described in the auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. .

We are independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the Financial Reporting Council’s (the ‘FRC’s") Ethical
Standard as applied to public interest entities, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We confirm that the non-audit services prohibited by the FRC’s Ethical
Standard were not provided to the company.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and approprlate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

3. Summary of our audit approach

Key audit matters - The key audit matters that we identified in the current year were:
e Valuation of equity release mortgage assets;
e Annuitant mortality assumptions used in the valuation of insurance contract
liabilities; and _
o Complex modelling used in the valuation of insurance contract liabilities

Materiality The materiality that we used in the current year was £8 523k which was
determined on the basis of 3% of shareholder’s equity.

Scoping " Audit work to respond to the risk of miaterial misstatement was performed directly
by the audit team together with internal specialists including IT, tax, actuarial, real
estate and financial instruments..

Significant chainges There have been no significant changes to our audit approach.
in our approach '
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4. Conclusions relating to going concern

We are required by ISAs (UK) to report in respect of the following matters | We have nothing to report

where:

e the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in
preparation of the financial statements is not appropriate; or

o 'the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any

identified material uncertainties that may - cast significant doubt

about the company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern

basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the

date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

in respect of these matters.

5. Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of
- material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) that we identified. These matters included those which
had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing
the efforts of the engagement team. )

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

5.1. Valuation of equity release mortgage assets

Key audit matter A

description

The financial investments held by the company described in Note 13 Financial
Investments include a portfolio of equity release mortgage assets ("ERMAs”). As
at the 31 December 2019, ERMAs amounted to £497m (2018: £453m). As
described in Note 1c Accounting policies, the company classifies all financial
investments as fair value through the profit and loss as required by IAS 39
Financial. Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. This valuation was not
impacted by these instruments being part of an IFRS 5 disposal group as at 31
December 2019. .

The fair value of the ERMAs is calculated by discounting future cash flows using a
risk free rate plus a spread. The cash flow analysis considers a number of
assumptions as detailed in Note 13 Financial' Investments which include the
valuation interest rate, house price inflation and house price volatility assumptions.
In addition, there is a no-negative equity guarantee embedded in the loan product,
which is stochastically modelled.

Through our risk assessment procedures considering the level of judgement,
complexity and sensitivity of the assumptions to the fair value of the ERMAs, we

. pinpoint our key audit matter to the following assumptions:

- Valuation interest rate;
- House price inflation; and
- House price volatility.

A change in these assumptions can have a significant impact on the valuation of
the ERMAs. A sensitivity analysis of the change in these assumptions on the fair
valuation of the ERMAs portfolio is provided in note 13 Financial Investments.

Further to these assumptions used to value the ERMAs, there is complexity in the
modelling used. Management uses a discounted cash flow model that uses multiple
data inputs (such as property valuations and policyholder data) and assumptions
as described. We have therefore identified the risk that the ERMA model is not-
functlonmg as intended as a key audit matter.

Due to the judgement involved in setting the assumptions and the complexity of
the valuation model we have |dent|ty this key audit matter as an area of potential
fraud.
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How the scope of
‘our audit responded
to the key audit
matter

In respect of the valuation of equity release mortgage assets:

e We obtained an understanding of the relevant controls over the valuation
process, including the company’s review and approval of the key judgements.
and assumptions used to value the ERMAs;

e We have assessed the fair value level 3 methodology used to value ERMAs
-against IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement;

e Together with our actuarial specialists, we have reviewed management's basis
papers and challenged the assumptions applied by comparison against those
used by peers and in industry studies, and benchmarked these to industry data
including Land Registry indices, and using our real estate specialists where
appropriate. This included an assessment of uncertainty in the residential
property market arising from Brexit which could impact on the assumptions
selected by management; and

* To validate the model used to value the ERMAs is functioning as intended, we
have engaged with our actuarial specialists to recalculate the fair value of a
sample of ERMA policies using our independent ERMA valuation model.

' _Key observations

_ Based on the work performed, we concluded that the valuation of equity release

mortgage assets included in the investment ‘portfolio of the company is
appropriate. ' : :

5.2. Annuitant mortality assumptions used in the valuation of insurance contract liabilities

Key audit matter
description

The assumptions for annuitant mortality (both base mortality assum.ptions and
mortality improvements) are fundamental in ensuring that appropriate insurance
contract liabilities are held by the company. The gross insurance contract liability

. balance as at 31 December.2019 amounted to £1.5bn (2018: £1.3bn) and is

detailed in Note 1d Accounting Policies and Note 9 Insurance and Investment
Contract Liabilities to the financial statements. This valuation was not impacted by -
these liabilities being part of an IFRS 5 disposal group as at 31 December 2019.

Annuitant mortality assumptions require a high degree of judgement due to the
number of factors which may influence mortality experience. We have therefore

. identified a potential fraud risk in this area.

The differing factors which affect the assumptions are underlying mortality
experience, industry and management views on the future rate of mortality
improvements and external factors arising from developments in the annuity
market. An example of this is the Continuous Mortality Investigation Tables
("CMI”) that have been updated by the company in 2019 as detailed in Note 9a.

These assumptions are calculated in line with actuarial methodology on the basis’
of past experience, adjusted for a best estimate of how experience may develop

“in the future, for example, for expected future mortality improvements.

How the scope of
our audit responded
to the key audit
matter

In respect of annuitant mortality assumptions we performed the foIIowmg
procedures, involving our actuarial specialists:-

¢ We obtained an understanding of the relevant controls over the assumption
setting process;

e We tested the methodology used by management to derive the assumptions
with reference to IFRS 4 , as well as applying our industry knowledge and
experience;

¢ Where the timing and amount of an assumption change (or a decision not to
make a change) required significant management judgement, we examined,
on a sample basis, the supporting documentation to. validate the
reasonableness of the assumption change, including consideration of possible
management bias;

* Where externally available models or data are used in the assumption setting-
process (such as for mortality improvements) we have assessed
management’s use of thls information in the assumption setting process and
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its relevance;

e Where appropriate, we have compared the assumptions selected by -
managemernt to those used by peer companies; and-

¢ We have substantively tested (including via recalculation) a sample of in-year
experience studies relating to mortality base assumptions, which included
assessing the appropriateness of the experience study methodology for each
sample selected, and assessing the resulting conclusions with respect to the
derived assumptions.

Key observations Based on the work performed and the evidence obtained, we consider the-
assumption's‘used for annuitant mortality to be appropriate.

53 Complex modelling used in the valuation of insurance contract liabilities

Key audit matter The actuarial model used in the annuity reserving calculation is inherently
description . complex, given the number and nature of inputs (policyholder data, economic
o data, assumptions) and the methodology used. The insurance contract liabilities
are modelled using projected future annuity payments, unit growth, costs of
guarantee and maintenance costs, then discounting these cash flows, making
allowance for expected future investment returns. This complex discounted cash
.flow model is carried out using actuarial modelling software. The total insurance
contract liability balance as at 31 December 2019 amounted to £1.5bn (2018:
£1.3bn) and is detailed in Note 1d Accounting Policies and Note 9 Insurance and
Investment Contract Liabilities to the financial statements. This valuation was not
impacted by these liabilities being part of an IFRS S disposal group as at 31
December 2019

Given this complexity in the model applied, we identified a key audit matter that
the model may not be functioning as intended, which is a potential fraud risk.

How the Scope of In order to test whether the actuarial model used in valuing the annuity insurance

our audit responded.. contract liabilities is functioning as intended, we performed the followmg
to the key audnt procedures, mvolvmg our actuarial specialists:
matter

e We obtained an understanding of the relevant controls in relatlon to modelllng
. and in particular the model change process;

e We recalculated, on a sample basis, the actuarial liabilities for the guaranteed
enhanced annuities to test that the model used for actuarial reserving
appropriately calculate the company’s actuarial liabilities. This included the
following:

o Testing accuracy and completeness of data (such as policyholder data)
used in the reserving prcess;

o Verifying that the assumptions used in the model are appropriate;

o Testing the model set-up to ensure the model is accurately valuing
significant features of policies sampled for independent recalcu|atlon
in accordance with IFRS 4; and

o " Independently valuing a sample of actuarial liabilities at a policy. level
using our independent annuity valuation model.

Key observations Based on the work performed.and the evidence obtained, the complex modelling
used in the valuation of insurance contract liabilities was appropriate.

6. Our application of materiality

6.1. Materiality

We define materiality as the magnitude of misstatement in the financial statements that makes it probable
that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable person would be changed or influenced. We use
materiality both in planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work.
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Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements as"a whole as
follows: .

Materiality £8,523k (2018: £5,515k)

Basis for 3% of shareholder’s, equity (2018: 2.75%)
determining

materiality The basis for determining materiality has increased from 2.75% to 3% of shareholder’s

equity as 2018 reflected a reduction in response to being a first year audit.

Rationale for  we have used shareholder’s equity as a benchmark for our materiality to reflect the

the : fact that the company is a regulated insurer, therefore mainly focussmg on capltal
benchmark management.
applied

Shareholder's equity Materiality £8,523k »

£284,106k

» Sharéholder's equity

) - —\_ Audit Committee
= Materiality reporting threshold
£426k

!

6.2. Performance materiality )
We set performance materiality at a level lower than materiality to reduce the probability that, in aggregate,
~ uncorrected and undetected misstatements exceed the materiality for the financial statements as a whole.
Performance materiality was set at 70% of materiality for the 2019 audit (2018 70%). In determining
performance materlallty, we considered the following factors:

a. the consistency of key operations and personnel;
b. the quality of the control environment and our ability to rely on controls; and
c. level of prior period uncorrected misstatements.

4

6.3. Error reporting threshold

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to the Committee all audit differences in excess
of £426k (2018: £276k), as well as differences below that threshold that, in our view, warranted reporting
on gualitative grounds. We also report to the Audit Committee on disclosure matters that we identified
when assessing the overall presentation of the financial statements.

7.An overview of the scope of our audit

7.1. Scoping

.Our audit was scoped.by obtaining an understanding of the entity and its environment, including internal
control, and assessing the risks of material misstatement. Audit work to respond to the risks of material
misstatement was performed directly by the audit engagement team. .

8. Other information

"The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to
determine whether there is 2 ‘material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement
of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

9. Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of thé financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for
such internal ¢ontrol as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. .

10. Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit o,fAthe financial
statements

[

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted ‘in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

Details of the extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud
and non-compliance with laws and regulations are set out below.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC’s
website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

11. Extent to which the audit was considered capable of
detecting irregularities, including fraud

We identify and assess the risks of materiai misstatemellwt of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, and then design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, including obtaining audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

11.1. Ideﬁtifying and assessing potential risks related to irregularities

In identifying and assessing risks of material misstatement in respect of irregularities, including fraud and
non-compliance with laws and regulations, we considered the following:

e the nature of the industry and sector, control environment and business performance including the
design of the compariy’s remuneration policies, key drivers for directors’ remuneration, bonus levels
and performance targets;

e the company’s own assessment of the risks that |rregularltles may occur either as a result of fraud
or error that was approved by the board;
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e results of our enquiries of management, internal audit and the audit committee about their own
identification and assessment of the risks of irregularities;
¢ any matters we identified having obtained and reviewed the company’s documentation of their
policies and procedures relating to:
o identifying, evaluating and complying with laws and regulatlons and whether they were aware
* of any instances of non-compliance;
o . detecting and responding to the risks of fraud and whether they have knowledge of any actual,
suspected or alleged fraud; '
"o the internal controls established to mitigate risks of fraud or non-compliance with laws and
regulations;
¢ the matters discussed among the audlt engagement team and involving relevant internal specnallsts,
including IT, tax, actuarial, real estate and financial instruments regarding how and where fraud .
might occur in the financial statements and any potential indicators of fraud.

e As aresult of these procedures, we considered the opportunities and incentives that may exist within the
organisation for fraud and identified the greatest potential for fraud in the following areas: valuation of
equity release mortgage assets, annuitant mortality assumptions used in the valuation of insurance
contract liabilities and complex modelling used in the valuation of insurance contract liabilities. In
common with all audits under ISAs (UK), we are also required to perform specific procedures to respond
.to the risk of management override.

We also obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework that the company operates in,
focusing on provisions of those laws and regulations that had a direct effect on the determination of material’
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The key laws and regulations we considered in this
context included the UK Companies Act and relevant tax legislation.

In addition, we considered provisions of other laws and regulations that do not have a direct effect on the
financial statements but compliance with which may be fundamental to the company’s ability to operate or
to avoid a material penalty. These included laws and regulations issued by the Financial Conduct Authority
(*FCA") and the Prudential Regulation Authority (‘PRA’), including the company’s regulatory solvency capital
requirements.

Audit response to risks identified

As a result of performing the above, we identified valuation of equity release mortgage assets, annuitant
mortality assumptions used in the valuation of insurance contract liabilities and complex modelling used in
the valuation of insurance contract liabilities-as key audit matters. The key audit matters section of our
report explains the matters in more detail and also describes the specific procedures we performed in
response to those key audit matters.

In addition to the above our procedures to respond to rlsks identified included the following:

e reviewing the financial statement disclosures and testing to supporting documentation to assess
compliance with provisions of relevant laws and regulations described as having a direct effect on
the financial statements;

e enquiring of management, the audit committee and external legal counsel concerning actual and
potential litigation and claims; '

e performing analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relatlonshlps that may
indicate risks of material misstatement due to fraud;

e reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance, reviewing internal audit reports and
reviewing correspondence with the FCA and the PRA; ’

e in addressing the risk of fraud through revenue recognition, assessed the relevant internal controls
around the premium recognition process and traced payments to the bank statement to verify the
accuracy of the amounts recorded in the general ledger; and

" e inaddressing the risk of fraud through management override of controls, testing the appropriateness

‘ of journal entries and other adjustments; assessing whether the judgements made in making
accounting estimates are indicative of a potential bias; and evaluating the business rationale of any
significant transactions that are unusual or outside the normal course of business.
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We also communicated relevant identified laws and regulations and potential fraud risks to all engagement
team members including internal specialists, and remained alert to any indications of fraud or non-
compliance with laws and regulations throughout the audit.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

12. Opinions on other matters prescrlbed by the Companies
Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

. the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for which
the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

»  the strategic report and the directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
reqmrements

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course
of the audit, we have not identified any material misstatements in the strategic report or the directors’
report.

13. Matters on which we are required to report by exception

13.1. Adequacy of explanations received and accounting records
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

* we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

e adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

e the financial statements are not in ggreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

13.2. Directors’ remuneration

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are also required to report if in our opinion certain disclosures of directors’
remuneration have not been made.

s

" We have nothing to report in respect of this matter.

14. Other matters

14.1. Auditor tenure

Following the.recommendation of the audit committee, we were appointed by the Board of Directors on 11
September 2018 to audit the financial statements for the year ending 31 December 2018 and subsequent
financial periods. The period of total uninterrupted engagement including previous renewals and
reappointments of the firm is two years, covering the years ending 31 December 2018 to 31 December
2019.

14.2. - Consistency of the audit report with the additional report to the audit committee

Our audit opinion is consistent with the additional report to the audlt committee we are required to provide
in accordance with ISAs (UK).
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15. Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Companies Act 2006. Qur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
company’s members those matters we are required to-state to them in an auditor’s report and for no
other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed.

.

Andrew Holland, FCA (Senior statutory auditor)
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Statutory Auditor

Bristol, UK

24 April 2020
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Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive

. Income

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Year énded

Year ended

operations

) 31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018
Restated*

‘ } Notes £'000 £'000
Continuing Operations:
Revenue 3 212 286
Net operating expenses 10 (3,039) (3,526) -
Loss before tax from continuing operations 7 (2,827) (3,240)
Income tax credit - 12 537 616
Loss after tax from continuing operations (2,290) (2,624)
Discontinued Operations:
Gross premiums written 90,242 107,317
Outward reinsurance premiums (17,744) (13,965)
Net premiums written 4 72,498 93,352
Investment income 5 37,372 34,837
Net realised gain on investments 6 '44,867 14,133
Net unrealised gain/(loss) on investments 7 108,723 (97,348)
Total income from discontinued operations 263,460 44,974
Claims paid (100,362) (94,988) A
Reinsurers’ share of claims paid \ 52,909 49,241
Net benefits and claims ’ 8 ‘ (47,453) (45,747)
Change in insurance contract liabilities (147,293) 17,328
Change in value of investment contracts (62,712) 23,019
Reinsurers’ share of change in insurance contract liabilities . 8,193 (46,239)
Net change in insurance contract liabilities -] (201,812) (5,892)
Net operating expenses 10 ' (10;196) (17,084)
Investment expenses and charges 11 (3,196) (3,360-)
Total expenses ’ D) (13,392) (20,444)
Total claims and expenses from discontinued (262,657) (72,083)
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Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensnve
Income (cont.)

Profit/(Loss) before tax from discontinued operations 803 . .(27,109)
Income tax (charge)/credit from discontinued operations 12 o (152) 5,145
z;:f:;{i(oL::s) for the year from discontinued . 651 (21,964)
Loss.for t.he year. ' . (1,639) . (24,588)
Total other comprehensive income for the year, net of taxl ’ - -
Comprehen;ive income for the year, net of tax . (1,639) . ' (24,588)

attributable to shareholders -

*See nofe 25.

Substantially all amounts derive from discontinued operations relating to the Part VII transfer of the insurance business

to Canada Life Limited which completed on 1'Jan'uary 2020.

The notes on pages 29 to 66 form an integral part of the financial statements.
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'Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 December 2019

As at 31 Dec

As at 31 Dec As at 1 Jan
2019 2018 2018
- Restated* Restated*
Notes £'000 £'000 £'000
Assets _ -
Financial investments 13 - 2,113,257 2,148,509
Investment in subsidiary 14 - - -
Reinsurance assets 9,15 - 464,301 510,540
I-nsu.rance and other receivables 16 - 2,698 5,002
Amouﬁts due from related undertakings 17 - 9,583 2,715
Income tax receivable - - 926
Assets of operations classified as held for sale 18 2,920,559' - -
Cash and cash equivalents 19 270 22,975 23,558
Total assets 2,920,829 2,612,814 2,691,250
Eduity )
Issued ordinary share capital 20 41,620 41,620 41,620
Issued ordinary share premium 20 114,000 30,000 -
Perpetual debt .20 66,379 60,311 54,793
Distributable capital contribution reserve 20 24,000 24,000 24,000
Retained eérnings 20 38,107 44,662 73,720
Total eduity 284,106 200,593 194,133
Liabilities .
Non-linked insurance contract liabilities 9 - 1,333,164 1,342,170
Unit-linked insurance contract liabilities 9 - 56,815 65,137
- Investment contract liabilities 9 10 468,612 493,826
Deposits received from reinsurers 21 - 547,699 586,540
Amounts due to related undertakings 17 - 352 2,267
" Income tax payable ‘ 22 . - 231 -
Insurance payables 23 i - 1,535 3,246
Other payables . 24 260 3,813 3,931
Liabilities of operations classified as held for sale 18 2,636,453 - -
Total liabilities’ ’ 2,636,723 . 2,412,221 ' 2,497,117
Total equity and liabilities 2,920,829 2,612,814 2,691,250

* See note 25.

The notes on pages 29 to 66 form an integral part of the financial statements.

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 24 April 2020 and were

signed on their behalf by:

Robert Craig Fazzini-Jones, Executive Director
MGM 'Advantage Life Limited
Registered no. 08395855
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Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2019

" Distributable

31 December 2019

. . . N . Total
Ordinary  Ordinary share capital Retained Perpetual .
Notes . share capital premium contribution earnings debt Sha'eho::f";:
reserve .
£'000 - £000 £'000 £000 [  £000 £000
Balance as at - )
41,620 24,000 73,720 54,793 194,133
31 December 2017 : . :
Total comprehensive
income for the year
Loss for the year - - - - (24,588) - (24,588) -
_ - - (24,588) - (24,588)
Transactions with owners -
of the Company ,
Sale of share - 30,000 - — - 30,000
‘Debt interest (distributed)/ - - - (5,511) 5,511 -
capitalised ’
Amortisation of debt issuance ] — - - 7) 7 -
costs : - ’ )
Income tax on equity items 12 . . - - - 1,048 - - 1,048
- 30,000 - (4,470) 5,518 31,048
Balance as at - :
41,620 30,000 24,000 44,662 60,311 200,593
31 December 2018 .
H
Total comprehensive
income for the year .
Loss for the year - - - (1,639) - (1,639)
- - - (1,639) - (1,639)
4. Transactions with owners
of the Company
Sale of shares - 84,000 - - - 84,000
Debt interest (distributed)/ 20 - - - (6,061) 6,061 -
capitalised
Amortisation of debt issuance ’ . . - - - . 7) 7 -
costs '
Income tax on equity items 12 . - - - 1,152 - 1,152
- 84,000 -  (4,916) 6,068 85,152
Balance as at "
41,620 114,000 24,000 38,107 66,379 284,106 .

No dividends were declared or paid during the year.

The .notes on pages 29 to 66 form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Year ended Year en‘ded

31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018

'Note £'000 £'000
Cash flows from operating activities.
Payment to policyholders . _ ' : (139,042) (130,971)
Receipts from policyholders . , 153,876 ) 172,7427
Payments to reinsurers ’ ' (4,285) . . (4,252)
Indirect flexible income annuity claims paid : (36,588) © (34,181),
Indirect flexible income annuity premiums received . ; 1,432 . 932
Payments to suppliers anq employees v (2,120) (1,496)
Expenses reimbursed . ’ S S
Payments to intermediaries/reversals (262) ' . T (361) '
Expense to settle derivative positions o : - (1,056)
Purchase of fair value through profit and loss financial investments : (744,506) (535,403)
:i‘r\?ec:teg;:;gm disposal of- fair value through profit and loss financial 658,021 471,416
Investment income charges rebated ) 241 : 296
Dividend income received . 1,064 - 523
Interest income received ' - . . 50,066 56,954
Corporation tax (paid)/received . . . (215) 925
Net services fees and recharges . ' (13,017) (23,761)
Net cash outflow from operating activities : V (75,335) (33,703)
Cash flows from im{esting activities ! '
Proceeds from disposal of asset held for sale - 3,120
Net cash inflow from investing activities . - © 3,120
Cash flows from financing activities
Issue of share capital and share premium o . 84,000 30,000
Lease payments T : : (455) : S
Interest paid ’ (19) -
Net cash inflow from financing activities A 83,526 " 30,000
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ' 8,191 - (583)
Cash and cash equivélen& classified as held for sale . (30,896) : ’ -
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year . ) . 22,975 23,558 .

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ’ 19 270 . 22,975

The notes on pages 29 to 66 form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Accounting policies

a) General

o

MGM Advantage Life Limited (the 'Company”) is a 'private company limited by shares and was incorporated in the United
Kingdom on 8 February 2013. The Company is a limited liability compaﬁy domicited in England and Wales. The Company

commenced trading on 30 November 2013.

b) Basis of preparation N

The financial staterﬁents have been prepared in-accordance with International Financial Repor;ting Standards (IFRS)
adopted by the European Union, and those parts of the Companies Act 2006 as applicable to companies reporting under
IFRS. «

) The financial statements present information about the Company as an individual undertaking as it is exempt from the
obligatidn to prepare consolidated financial statements under section 4(a) IFRS 10. The Company'’s results are included
in the consolidated financial statements of The Canada Life Assurance Company, a company incorporated in Canada.

These financial statements present information @bout the Company as an individual undertaking and not about its-Group.

Having regard to the Company'’s financial position, financial projections and its expected future performance, the Directors
have a reasonable‘anticipation that the Company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable futurg despite initial expected losses as the SIPP product grows. The Directors have considered the impact of
the UK's exit from the EU and as a predominantly UK focused business the Company’s operating model is not materially

impacted 'by‘ the UK'’s withdrawal from the EU.

The Company held capita!l in éxcess of its required capital on a Solvency Il basis 4througho‘ut 2019 and both as at 3_1
December 2019, and 1 January 2020 prior to the completion of the Part VII transfer of insurance business to Canada Life
" Limited and taking into account the run off of the Transitional Measures on Technical Provisions. The Directors have
considered the impact of Covid-19 which may delay thé anticipated growth in the SIPP product, however given the excess
capital held there is sufficient surplus to.cover a delay for the foreseeable future and at least for a period of 12 months
from the approval of these financial statements. In view of this, the annual report a‘nd financial s'tatements have b'éen
prepared on a going concern basis under the historical cost convention, exéept for financial instruments that are measured
at revalued amounts or fair values as permitted or required by IFRS. These policies have been reported consistently for
all periods presented in these financial statements. Historical cost, where applicable, is generally based on the fair value

of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
Critical judgements and estimates made in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, apart from those

involving estimations that can significantly affect the amounts recognised in the financial statements.
The principal areas of judgement comprise the following:
« Insurance contract liabilities and reinsurance assets

The valuation process reflects management's best estimate of cash flows but includes a margin to allow for the

level of risk and uncertainty inherent in the business. As at 31 December 2019, management maintained the
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1. Accounting policies (cont.)

¢) Financial investments

Upon initial recognition, all financial investments are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial investments at fair value through profit or loss

Financial investments are classified at fair value.throudh profit or loss upon initial recognitioh under the fair value option
except for derivatives which are classified at fair value through profit or loss as required by IAS 39 - ‘Financial Instrufnents:

‘Recog nition and Measurement’.

The Company designates all financial investrients under fair value through profit and loss as this categorisation
significantly reduces recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or

recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases.

The Company manages these investments and makes purchase and sale decisions based on their fair_value in accordance
with the Company’s investment strategy. Purchases and sales of financial investments are accounted for at trade date;
‘which is the date that the Company commilts to purchase or sell investments, at.their fair :value. Upon ini-tial recognition,
attributable tranﬂsaction costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. Financial investments are measured at fair value
and che;nges therein are recognised in profit or loss. The fair values of investments are based on ‘quoted bid prices, or

based on modelled prices (using observable market inputs) where quoted bid-prices are not available.

Financial investments at fair value through profit or loss include: derivatives; listed investments; units in authorised unit
frus_ts; Open Ended Investment Companies (OEICs);.equity release mortgage assets and other investments. The
Company’s derivative financial instruments are not designated formally as hédges and therefore hedge accounting does
not apply. Instead they are considered to be economic hedges and as such, fair value gains and losses on the derivatives
are included in unrealised gains and losses on investments as are any gains or losses on the investments which they

hedge. T

Equity release mortgage assets have been classified as fair value through profit or loss. They are measured by discounting
the future cash'f\lows using a risk free rate plus spread. The cash flow analysis considers future expenses, assumed

mortality experience and also the no-negative equity guarantee embedded in the loan product. .

De-recognition of financial investments _
Investments are derecognised when the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the investments expire, or where
the investments have been transferred, together with substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

A financial investment is derecognised when:

. the Company'’s right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired;

. the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset to a third party;
. the Company‘has transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership to a third party; or
. the Company has transferred control of the asset to a third party. '

Investment contract liabilities .

Amounts received in res'pect of investment contracts are accounted for using deposit accounting, under which amounts
collected are credited directly to 'the Statement of Financial Position, as an adjustment to the liability to the policyholder.
These contracts are accounted for as financial liabilities, whose value is contractually linked to the fairjvalues of financial
assets with the Co}npany’s unitised investment funds. The value of the investment contract liabilities is determined by
using current unit 'prices, multiplied by the ﬁumber of unitsattributable to the contract holders at the reported date. Their

value is never less than the amount payable on withdrawal.
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1. Accounting policies (cont.)

Interest or changes to the unit prices credited tc the investment contract account balances are charged as expenses in
the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, through changes in liabilities arising from the
investment contracts. Deposits and withdrawals are not accounted for through the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income but are instead accounted for i in the Statement of Financial Posttuon as adjustments to the liability

arising from mvestment contracts.
d) Valuation of insurance contract liabilities and investment contract liabilities

The method used in determining insurance contract liabilities involves projecting future annuity payments and
maintenance costs and then discounting these cash flows, making allowance for expected future investment returns. The
valuation process reflects management’s best estimate of cash flows but includes a margin to allow for the level of risk

and uncertainty inherent in the business.

‘At the end of each reporting year the Company assesses whether~ its recognised insurance liabilities are adeqpate, using
current estimates of future cash flows for its insurance contract liabilities. If that assessment shows.fhat the carrying
amount of its ihsurance contract liabilities is not adequaté in the light of the estimated future cash flows, the deficiency
is‘recognised in profit or loss. The basis for the valuation of insurance contracts acquired in business combinations and
portfolio transfers is identical to that for existing insurance contracts. Insurance contracts transferred in are backed by

existing asset portfolios and by assets received in the form of reinsurance premiums.

Investm_ent contract liabilities are stated at the fair value of the single priced QEIC financial investments and cash reserves
attributable to relevant policyholders. :
A ’ .

e) Valuation of financial assets and derivative financial investments

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the
characterlstlcs of the asset or liability if market partmpants would take those charactenstlcs into account when pricing

the asset or liability at the measurement date. .

Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determined on such a basis, except
for when measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are.not fair value, such as value in use per IAS 36 -
‘Impairment of Assets’. In the absence of an active market, fair value is estimated using valuation technigues that include
the use of discounteq cash flow models and/or mathematical models, the inputs to which are taken from observable

market data.

For discounted cash flow valuation, estimated future cash flows and discount rates are based on current ‘market
information and rates applicable to financial instruments with similar yuelds, credit quallty and maturity characteristics.

Note 13 contains more details on the assumptions used

Derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in value recognised in profit or loss. Derivatives are derecognised
when the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the derivatives expire ‘or when the instruments have been

~ transferred, together with substéntially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

f) Classification of insurance and investment contracts

The Company’s insurahce contracts are classified for accounting purposes -as either non-linked or unit-linked insurance
contracts. These are all non-participating contracts. All of the insurance contracts issued by the Company are post-
retirement pension policies that fund retirement income and can remain in force for an extended period of Fime. The

majority are annuity policies that insure events associated with longevity. Insurance contracts are defined as those
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1. Accounting policies (cont.)

containing significant insurance risk, if_\and only if, an insured event would cause an insurer to pay significant additional
benefits to the policyholder than otherwise would be the case.

The Company’s insurance contracts accept the transfer of uncertainty from pollcyholders by providing a whole of life

annuity to them that adds value through the management of risk.

The Company’s investment contracts are the Retirement Pension Drawdown ("RPD") and with-profit flexible 'income
annuity (FIA) business reinsured with Scottish Friendly Assurance. RPD forms one component of The Retirement Account
* ("TRA") product, with the other component being the Retirement Guaranteed A‘nnuify ("RGA"). The RPD component is
composed of either directly held unit-linked OEIC investments .and or cash that can be readily drawn upon by the
policynolder and the product componenf has no significant element of transferrable insurance risk and therefore is
accounted for as a financial instrument. Amounts received in respect of investment contracts are accounted for using
deposit accountinr_;, pnder which amounts collected are credited directly to the Statement ‘of Financial Position, as an
adjustment to the liability to the policyholder. .

g) Revenuel

Revenue consists of SIPP account fees and is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivabie and
represents amounts receivable for services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts, VAT and other

sales related taxes. Account fees are recognised on an accruals basis as the service is provided.

h) Net earned premiums

.Premiums are recognised in the accdunting year in which an insurance contract is commenced, gross of any advisor fees
payable. Premiums which have been received and: for which no contract iis yet in-force are class[fied as a liability within
insurance payables. Premiums exclude any taxes or duties based on premiums. Policyholders typically pay Independent
Financial Advisor (IFA) fees by paying a gross premium to the Company, from which the Company deducts the relevant

advisory fee and pays this onward to the IFA. These fees are recorded within net operating expenses in profit or loss.

Other charges are priced into the premium that policyholders need to pay to secure'a specific annui'ty contract and rate
and are reflected in profit or loss by differences between premiums paid to the Company and the associated reserve set -
up for the liability to the policyholder. The reserve set up is accounted for as a change in valpe of insurance contract
liabilities. The relevant insurance contract liability or reserve includes an allowance for future maintenance expenses.
Acquisition expenses are not deferred in relation to insurance contracts and are .instead expensed |mmed|ately within net

operatlng expenses in profit or loss.

Reinsurance premiums and recoveries are accounted for in the-accounting year in accordance'with the contractual terms

of the reinsurance treaties, as per note 1k.
i) Net investment income, realised and unrealised gains on investments
Investment income

Investment income includes distributions on collective investment schemes, interest on fixed income securities, equity
release mortgage interest paid and interest on cash deposits. Distributions on collective investment schemes are
recognised when the securities are quoted ex-dividend. Interest.on debt securities, Bank'deposits, and other interest is

recognised on an accruals basis.

Investment income includes a deduction for interest payable to Hannover Re, as a result of carrying a deposit back liability
in favour of the reinsurer. The Company credits Hannover Re with investment income on its deposited reserves. The
interest payable is effectively funded by financial investments that the Company holds. As a result the interest payable to

Hanncver Re is accounted for as deductlon to investment income rather than as an operating. expense
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1. Accounting policies (cont.)

Realised gains on investments

Realised gains and losses include gains and losses on financial assets and liabilities. Realised gains and losses are’ '

calculated as the difference between net sales proceeds and original cost and are recognised on the sale of the asset.
Unrealised gains on investments

Unrealised gains on Jinvestments are.calculated as the difference between their fair value in the statement of financial
position and the original cost or subsequent revaluation. Unrealised gains or losses in the statement of profit or loss and -
other comprehensive income also include adjustments for unrealised gains or losses recognised‘in‘previc‘)us periods which
reversed on the sale of the financial asset and offset the recognition of realised gains and losses in the current period.
Unrealised gains on equity release mortgage assets includes the interest a;crued on these mortgages given they are
subject to the No-Negative Equity Guarantee. ’

Unrealised gains include accumulated positive or negative capital adjustments that are representative of amounts
(payable)/receivable (to)/from Hannover Re in relation to the deposit back liability under the terms of the treaty. Capital
adjustments are based on changes in the valuation rate of interest between the end and start of a quarterly accounting
period and number of reinsured policies in force. The relevant accumulated capital adjustments reflect the :coverage’ of
-financial ihvestments held over 'the'd_eposit back liability in favour of the reinsurer and are therefore recorded as a return
- of inveetment unrealised gain or loss,r'rather than as an operating expense. These gains or losses will only become realised

when the deposjt back liability is settled.
j) Benefits and claims . d

Gross benefits and claims on insurance contracts include the cost of all claims arising during the year. Annuity payments

are recognlsed when they falil due for payment.
k) Reinsurance

The Company both cedes and accepts insurance risk in the normal course of business. Reinsurance premiums payable are

recognised when the underlying contract premiums becofne receivable or the underlying contract becomes effective.

The reinsurance asset in the Statement of Financial Position is accounted for net of a ‘Iiability that is the present value of
contingent reinsurance premiums payable to Hannover Re because the fees payable are risk bearing and relevant to
obtaining the reinsurance cover. The liability is calculated as the discounted present value of future premiums. Reinsurance
premiums are payable to Hannover Re based on a fixed schedule of quarterly payments. The Company is tequired, under
the agreement, to pay the premiums when its realistically assessed capital is in excess of its realistic capital requirement
under the old Solvency I regime (i.e. Individual Capital Assessment (ICA) plus Individual Capital Guidance (ICG)),

- excluding any allowance for additional risk appetite.

The credit quality of the reinsurance asset is assessed by regular review over Hannover Re’s credit standing, although the
Company holds a deposit back liability in favour of the reinsurer that exceeds the value of the reinsurance aséet and
therefore the risk of counterparty default is covered by this arrangement. The reinsurance asset is measured on a realistic
basis., whereas the deposit back liability is measured on a prudentvregulatory basis. The gap between the asset and liability

value is representative of a prudential margin to cover mortality risk.

Reinsurance recoveries related to clalms paid are recognised as a deductlon to claims paid and are recognlsed when the
underlying contract claims become payable. The revaluation of the reinsurance asset in the statement of financial position
recognises the movement in the recoverable amount related to policyholder liability reserves, the valuation movement of
this asset is recorded in profit or loss as the Reinsurers’ share of. change in insurance contract liabilities. Reinsurance
assets represent the balances recoverable from reinsurance companies, net of future reinsurance premiums, in accordance
with the terms of the reinsurance contract. The amount recoverable is measured consistently with the amounts associated .

with the terms of the reinsurance contract.
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1. Accounting policies (cont.)

Reinsurance liabilities are prirharily premiums payable fqr reinsurance contracts and are recog'nised as an e)ipense when
due. Interest payable on the deposit back liability is cajculated at the end of the previous quarter (for existing business)
or at the policy start date using the previous quarter assumptions (for new businéss). Interest is payable at the previous
quarter's reassurance interest rate for the period during the quarter the policy was in force. If Hannover default on their
obligations as reinsurer, the deposit back liability is available to the extent necessary to cover the Company’s obligations

to policyholders or otherwise when the last policyholdgr or when their spouse dies ft will be ei(tinguished.

1) Net operating expenses

Operating exben.ses, which in'clude administrative expenses, are recognised on an accruals basis as incurred.
m) Investment expenses and charges l

Investment expenses and charges are recognised on an accruals basis as incurred and include investment management

’

expenses and equity release premium fees.

n) Income tax expense

Current income tax

Current income tax is based on taxable profits or losses for the year, after any adjustments made in respect of prior years.
Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and laws used. to compute current income tax amounts are those that are enacted by the

statement of financial position date.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is calculated using the statement of financial position liability method, which focuses on temporary
differences. Temporary differences are differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the statement of financial position. The tax rates and laws used to‘ compute deferred tax assets and liabilities
are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the statement of financial position daté. Deferred tax assets are
recognised when it is probabie that future taxable profit will be available to utilise the temporary differences. Deferred
tax liabilities are recognised for all temporary taxable differences. The Company has right of legal offset of its deferred

tax assets and liabilities and therefore these are presented net in the statement of financial position.
o) Foreign currencies

Thg financial statemeﬁts of the Company are presented in sterling, the currency of the primary economic environment in
which it operates (its functional currency). In preparing the financial statements, transactions in currencies other than
" the Company'’s functional currency (foreign currencies)'al;e recognised at the rates of exthange prevailing on the dates of
the transactions. At each statement of financial position date, rﬁonetéry assets and liabilities that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing.at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a‘foreign currency are not retranslated.
p) Insurance and other receivables

Insufance, trade and other receivables that have fixed or determina‘blé .pay’ments that are not quoted in an active market
are classified as ‘loans and receivables’. Loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost less any impairrﬁent. A
provision for impairment of a receivable is established where there is objective evidence thét the Company will not be
able to collect all amounts due_according to the original terms of the receivab]e. The amount of the provision is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the

original effective interest rate.
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1. Accounting policies (cont.)

q) Investment in subsidiaries
Shares in subsidiary undertakings are stated at cost less any provision for diminution in value.
r) Assets and liabilities held for sale

Disposal groups are classified as held for sale when their carrying value is expected to be recovered principally through a
sale transaction and a sale is considered highly probable. The Company applies the measurement requirements of IFRS
5 "Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations” to non-financial assets within the disposal group. The
overall disposal group is stated at the lower of the carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Non-current assets
or disposal groups that represent'a separate major line of business, are also classified as discor_ltinued operations. Where
the measurement requirements of IFRS 5 do not apply to other assets and liabilities in the disposal group,, the

measurement criteria of the relevant other standards are applied.
s) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank, cash in hand as well as short-term deposits with a maturity of three
months or less and have known redemption velues which are held to manage short-term operational cash requirefnens
on origination. This defines the cash and cash equivalents used.in the statement of cash flows. Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Company’s cash-management are included as a componen-t of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the Company’s statement of cash flows. The Com.pany has a right of offset

between cash balances and overdrafts, and presents a net position as at the year end.
t) Share capital

‘Equity instruments issued. by the Company areA recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. As per the
Compeny’s articles of association, in the event of a winding-up order or other return of capital, deferred shares entitle
holders of those shares onIy to payment of the amounts paid up for those shares after repayment to Ordinary
Shareholders. Furthermore, deferred shares do not confer entltlement to any participation in the profits or assets of the

Company nor the right to attend or vote in a general meeting of the Company.
. u) Perpetual debt

Perpetual debt is initially recognised at fair value, iess applicable issue costs and is classified as equity based on the

substahce of the perpetual loan agreement. Accrued interest that is unsettled is capitalised on an annual basis.
v) Other payables

_ Other payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective

interest method.
w) Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities

The Company adopted IFRS 16 (Leas‘es) from 1 January 2019. On transition to IFRS 16, the Company elected to apply
the practical expedient to grandfather the assessment of which transactions are leases, and, applied IFRS 16 only to
contracts that were previously identified as leases under IAS 17 applying a fully retrospective approach. The Company
did not recognise operating leases of low-value, or those for which the lease term ends within 12 moﬁths of the balance

sheet date. 2018 comparative information has been restated on this basis, and, without the -benefit of hindsight.

On transition lease liabilities were measured at the dresent value of the remainind lease payments, discounted at the
Company incremental borrowing rate. Right-of-use assets are measured. at the amount equal to the lease liability. The
Company depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight line method from the lease commencement date to the earlier
of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The Company also assesses the right-

of-use as;et for impairment when such indicators exist.

)
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2. Adoption of new and revised standards

New and revised Standards that have not been adopted by the Company

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, ihe following Standards and Interpretations have not been

applied in these financial statements but were in issue, but not yet effective:

IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts (effective 1 January 2023, not yet endorsed)

IFRS 17 replaces IFRS 4 and establishes the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentatlon and
disclosure of insurance contracts within the scope of the standard. The International Accounting Standards Board
originally proposed that this would be effective from 2021, however, in March 2020 agreed to delay the effective
date by two years to periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023. The objective of IFRS 17 is to ensure that an
entity provides relevant information that faithfully represents those contracts. This information gives a basis for

users of financial statementé to assess the effect that insurance contracts have on the entity's financial position,

-financial perfdrmanée and cash flows. The Company does not expect this standard to have a material impact given

the Parf_ VII transfer of the insurance-business on 1 January 2020.

- IFRS 3 - Business Combinatidns (effective 1 January 2020, endorsed)

In October 2018, the IASB issued amendments to IFRS 3, Business Combinations. The amendments provide
additional guidance as to whether a company acquired a business or a group of assets. Adoption of IFRS 3 would
not have had an impact on the Company’s financial statements, as the Company did not make any acquisitions in

scope of IFRS 3 in the year.

IAS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements and IAS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors (effective 1 January 2020, endorsed) .

In October 2018, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements and IAS 8,
Accounting Policies, Change§ in Accounting Estimates and Errors. The amendments are to clarify the definition of
‘'material' and to align the definition used in the Conceptual Framework and the standards themselves. An
assessment of the amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8, principally over th'e definition of material, is not expectéd to

have a significant impact to the Company’s financial statements.

IAS 39 - Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement (effective 1 January 2020, endorsed)
The amendments in Interest Rate Benchmark Reform (Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7) clarify that

"entities would continue to apply certain hedge accounting requirements assuming that the interest rate benchmark

on which the hedged cash flows and cash flows from the hedging instrument are based will not be altered as a

. ‘result of interest rafe benchmark reform. TAS 39 does not have an impact on the Company'’s financial statements

as no hedging instruments are held.
New and revised Standards that adoption has been deferred by the Company

IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (effective 1 January-2018)

IFRS 9 will replace IAS39 Financial instruments: Recognition and Measurement. Under IFRS 9 all financial assets
will be measured at either amortised cost or fair value, with the basis of classification depending on the business
model and the contractual cash.flow characteristics of the financial assets. Applying IFRS 9 with IFRS 4 ‘Inéurance
Contracts’, introdﬁces two approaches: an overlay épproach (giving companies that issue\insurance contracts the |
option to recognise in Other Comprehensive Income, rather than the Income Statement, any volatility. that could
arise when IFRS 9 is applied before-the new insurance contracts standard is issued); or, a deferral approach (giving
companies whose activities are predominantly connected with insurance an optional temporary exemption from
_applying IFRS 9 until 2023). The Company is taking the deferral approach and has measured those liabilities which
are within the scope of IFRS 4 and these are greater than the 90% threshold of total liabilities as at 31 December
2015 required to take the deferral option. The option to defer this standard remains despite the Part VII transfer
héppening on 1 January 2020, however, the resuit of this transfer means the impact of IFRS 9 is not expected to

be material. N
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2. Adoption of new and revised standards (cbnt.)

New and revised Standards that have been adopted by the Company
In the current year, the following new and revised Standards and Interpretations have been adopted:
e IFRS 16 - Leases .

IFRS 16 replaced IAS 17 Leases. IFRS 16 applies a control model to the identification of leases, distinguishing
between leases and service contracts on 'the basis of whether there is an identified asset controlled by the customer.
IFRS 16 removes the distinction between operating and finance leases, with assets and liabilities recognised in

respect of all leases. The Company has one lease for office space in London.

e IAS 28 - Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
In October 2017, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures. The.
amendments clarify that a company is to account for long-term interests in an associate or joint venture using
IFRS 9, Financial Instruments when the equity n'iethod is not applied. Adoption of these amendments did not have

an impact on the Company s financial statements as no associates or joint ventures are held.

e IAS 19 - Employee Beneflts
In February 2018, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 19, Employee Benefits. The‘amendments clarify that
updated actuarial assumptions are to be'lused in accdunting for when a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement
occurs. Adoption of these amendments did not have an impact on the Company's financial statements as no.

employee benefit schemes in scobe of IAS 19 are held.
¢ IFRS 3 - Business Combinations and IFRS 11 - Joint Arrangements

. The amendmenfS“to IFRS 3 clarify that when an entity obtains control of ‘a business that is a joint operation, .it
remeasures previously held interests in that business. The amendments to IFRS 11 clarify that when an entity
obtains joint control of a business that is a joint operation, the entity does not remeasure previously held interests
in that business. Adoption of these amendments did not have an impact on the Company’s financial statements as

no joint operations are held.

e IAS 12 - Income Taxes ,

The. amendments clarify that the requirements in the former paragraph 52B (to recognise the income tax
consequences of dividends where the transactions or events that generated distributable profits are recognised)
apply to all income tax consequences of d|V|dends by moving the paragraph away from paragraph 52A that only
deals with situations where there are different tax rates for distributed and undistributed profits. Adoption of these
amendments did not have an impa'ct on the Cc‘)mlpany’s financial statements as no dividends were paid by the
Company.
e IAS 23 - Borrowmg Costs ! .

The amendments clarify that if any specnflc borrowing remains outstanding after the related asset is ready for lts

intended use or sale, that borrowing becomes part of the funds that an entity borrows generally when calculating

the capitalisation rate on general borrowings. Adoption of these amendments ‘did not have an impact on the

Company s financial statements as no borrowing is in place that specnfucally relates to assets held for sale.

e IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
IFRIC 23 addresses the determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits-
and tax rates, when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under IAS 12. Adoption of this standard did

not have an impact on the Company’s financial statements as there were no uncertainties over income tax.

v
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3. Revenue .
) Year ended " . Year ended

‘31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018
£'000 £°000
Account fee income i 212 A 286
Total 212 286
4. Premiums.
Gross premiums written are analysed as follows:
Year ended . Year ended
31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018
Restated*
£000 £'000
Insurance Contracts:: .
Enhanced Annuity premiums (EA) . o 6,1;’99
Retirement Guaranteed Annuity premiums (RGA) 4 ) . 90,242 100,918
Gross premiums written from discontinued operations 90,242 © 107,317
Outward reinsurance premiums (17,744) (13,965)

Net premiums written from discontinued operations 72,498 93,352

*See note 25

Gross premiums written are entirely: composed of new business premiums. The Company’s external customers are

Yindividual policyholders. MGM Advantage Life Limited is not dependent on any individual cu_stbmer.

Outward reinsurance premiums represent premium amounts ceded to Hannover Re for reinsuring 50% of the mbrtality
risk associated with the EA and RGA Products only written before 31 December 2015. Premiums written after 31
December 2015 are 75% reinsured through a longevity sWap agreement with Hannover Re. The reinsurance premiums

paid in the accounting period reflect new business sales of EA and RGA.

All, premiums written relate to non-participating ‘contracts. All EA and RGA premiums are classified as non-linked
insurance contracts whilst with-profit flexible income annuity (FIA) premiums are classified as unit-linked insurance
contracts other than those reinsured with Scottish Friendly Assurance which are classified as investment contracts. FIA

is closed to new business and the Company ceased the sale of standalone enhanced annuities in February 2018.

Premiums on products classified as investment contracts are deposit accounted and as such are excluded from gross

written premiums.
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5. Investment income

Yeér ended

Year ended

31 Dec 2019 " 31 Dec 2018
Restated*
£'000° £000
Shares, unit trusts and OEICs 1,249 1,236
Debt secdrities and other fixed income securities 42,508 42,844
Interest payat_JIe'on reinsurance deposit (18,194) (20,121)
Equity release mortgage assets -10,710 10,430
Other investment income 1,099 448
Total from discontinued operations ] 37,372 34,837

*see note 25.

6. Net realised gain on investments

Year ended

Year ended

31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018

£000 £'000

s Debt securities and other fixed income securities 700 963

Shares, unit trusts and OEICs 38,247 8,426

Derivatives - (500)

Equity release moirtgage assets 5,920 5,244
44,867

Total from discontinued operations -

14,133

7. Net unrealised gain/(loss) on investments

A Year ended

‘Yéar ended

' 31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018
£000° - £'000
Debt securities and other fixed incon';e securities 72,868 (64,035)
Reinsurance deposit revaluations (46,034) ' 19,607
Shares, unit trusts and OEICs 30,939 (34,388)
Equity Eelease mortgage assets 50,950 (18,532)
Total from discontinued operations (97,348)

108,723
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8. Net benefits and claims

Year ended Year ended
31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018
Restated*
£°000 £'000
Claims paid in relation to:
Non-linked insurance contracts (96,209) (90,853)
Unit-linked insurance contracts (4,153) - (4,135)
Total claims paid (100,362) (94,988)
Reinsurer’s share of claims 52,909 49,241
Net from discontinued operations (47,453)

* See note 25

(45,747)

Retirement Pension Drawdown (RPD) withdrawals, being a component of the TRA product, and withdrawals for FIA

business reinsured from Scottish Friendly Assurance are classified as investment contracts and deposit accounted and-as

such are excluded from net benefits and claims.

Upon completion of the Part VII scheme for the transfer of long-term insurance business on 1 January 2020, all the above

business transferred to Canada Life Limited on that date.

9. Insurance and investment contract Iiabilities'

Year ended Year ended
31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018
Restated*
£°000 £°000
Gross change in insurance contract liabilities: ) '
(Increase)/decrease in non-linked insurance contract liabilities (144,679) 9,006
(Increase)/decrease in unit-linked insurance contract liabilities (2,614) 8,322
, . (147,293) 17,328
Gross change in investment contract liabilities: :
(Increase)/decrease in investment contract liabilities (62,712) 23,019
Change in contract liabilities ceded to reinsurers:
Increase/(decrease) in ceded insurance contract liabilities 8,193 (46,239)
Net from discontinued operations (201,812) (5,892)

*see note 25.

The annuity liabilities decreased due to an increase in the discount rate caused by an increase in the risk-adjusted yield of

the backing assets and run-off of existing business but this was partially offset by the new business written during the year.

The amount ceded to the reinsurer is representative of the treaty that the Company has with Hannover Re for EA and RGA

business only and has decreased due to an increase in the discount rate, run-off of existing business and new business

written during the year.
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9. Insurance and investment contract liabilities (cont.)

a) Principal assumptions for non-linked insurance contract liabilities

Rates of interest used to discount liabilities:

Mortality:

Expense:

b) Movements

Year ended
31 Dec 2019

3.17% -

Base: 70%/
60%/60%/60%/
60%/60% of
PNXAQO for
HLRPOS1/2/3/4/
5/6

Improvements:
100% of CMI
2018 with a long
term rate of
1.5%/1.5% for
M/F and a
smoothness
factor of 7.5

£26.76 per policy

inflating at RPI +
1% p.a.

Year ended
31 Dec 2018

4.03%

Base: 70%/
60%/60%/60%/
60%/60% of
PNXAQQ for
HLRPOS1/2/3/4/
5/6

Improvements:
100% of CMI"
2017 with a long

term rate of .

1.5%/1.5% for
M/F and a
smoothness
factor of 7.75

£25.93 per policy
inflating at RPI +
1% p.a.

Movements in the carrying amount of insurance and investment contract liabilities and reinsurance assets were as ™ °

follows:

Unit Investment

Reinsurance

Non-linked A linked contracts ceded Net .
£°000 ~ £'000 " £'000 £'000 £°000
At 31 December 2018 Restated* (1,333,164) (56,815) (468,612) 464,301 (1,394,290)
Unwind of discount rate/investment (38,552) (6,767) - 10.137 (35,219)
experience ’ ! ! ! !
Annuity outgo 93,569 4,153 - (51,003) 46,719
New business (76,399) - - (3,357) (79,756)
Assumption changes - change in discount (113,501) ) _ . 34 542 (78,959)
rate : e ’ : ! !
Assumption changes - non economic .(10,488) - - 2,303 (8,185)
New business premiums deposit } ) ’ .
accounted (38,131) (38,131)
- Change in investment value - - 1(62,712) (62,712)
Claims deposit accounted - - 45,016 45,016
Fees, charges and other extractions 692. - 1,822 15,608 . 18,122
Classified as held for sale 1,477,843 59,429 522,607 (472,494) 1,587,385
At 31 December 2019 - - (10) - (10)
*see note 25.
/ .
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9. Insurance and investment contract liabilities (cont.)

. Unit

Investment

Reinsurance

Non-linked linked contracts ceded Net
£000 £000 £'000 £000 £000
= ) < Restated*  Restated*" Restated*
/ «
At 31 December 2017 (1,342,170) (65,137) (493,826) 510,540 (1,390,593)
Unwir!d of discount rate/investment (46,147) 4,187 _ 16,339 (25,621)
experience .
Annuity outgo ' 90,853 4,135, - (49,241) 45,747
New business . ) (86,689) - - (7,135) (93,824)
fastseumptlon changes - change in discount 58,360 _ _ (16,233) 42,127
- Assumption changes - non economic (8,016) - ) - (2,503) (10,519) .
New business premiums deposit . _ (36,317) . _ (36,317)
accounted ‘ ' . .
Change in investment value ’ - - 23,019 - 23,019
Claims deposit accountéed - - 35,956 - 35,956
Feés, charges and other extractions 645 - 2,556 12,534° 15,735
At 31 December 2018 (1,333,164) (56,815) (468,612) 464,301 (1,394,290)

*see note 25.

c) Sensitivity analysis

Life insurance results are inherently uncertain due to actual experience differing from model assumptions. The sensitivity

analysis performed below illustrates the impact that changes in key assumptions would have on profit before tax. The «

impact below is in reference to the change in insurance contract liabilities, but does not include the impact of the valuation

of equity release assets.

Increase/(decrease) in profit before

Increase/(decrease) in Equity

tax
31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018 31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018
£°000° £°000 ) £'000 £000
Sensitivity variable:
5% increase in annuitant mortality rates : 8,392 7,248 6,797 5,871
SObps increase in discount rates 81,332 - 69,022 65,879 55,907
10% increase in expenses and 100bps (4,954) (4,340) (4,013) (3,516)

increase to expense inflation

Notes

The underlying assumptions on which the sensitivity analysis has been performed are the same as those used to calculate

v .
insurance contract liabilities and reinsurance assets. These impacts reflect changes in insurance contract liabilities and

reinsurance assets. The reinsurance impact is only on annuitant mortality, for which the majority of business is. reinsured

fon; 50%. The impact on equity allows for the expected impact on the tax charge. The tax rate assumed for 2020 is 19%

which is unchanged from 2019.
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10. Net‘operating expenses

Year ended

. Year ended
31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018
. £000 £°000
Included within net operating expenses are:
Policyholder administration service fees : (3,039) >(3,526)
Total from continuing operations ) : : (3,039) - (3,526)
Advisor fees and commission - . ‘ ] (262) (365)
Policyholder administration service fees (7,515) (12,503)
Project costs : : (233) (1,742)
Managemeht service fegs ’ : ’ . . (1,280) . (2,080)
Legal and professional fees . i : (317) (237)
Depreciation of right-of-use asset (note 26) ' o ) (316) -
Interest expense (note 26) . ‘ (19) -
Other fees ’ : (254) (157)
Total from discontinued operations ' " (10,196)

(17,084)

-

The Company had no employees during the year (including directors) (2018: none).

All contracts of employment with the Company are held with a fellow group company MGM Advantage Services Limited.

The associated costs are ‘recharged to the Company within the service fees.

Auditor Remuneration

" The statutory audit of the financial statements fee of the Company was £152,600 excluding VAT (2018: £148,696
exi:luding VAT) and incurred £6,500 re!ating to additional work performed on-the previous years audit (2018: £nil).. Fees

for other assurance services were £nil excluding VAT (2018: £nil excluding VAT). Fees for audit related assurance services
were £30,900 (2018: £30,000 excluding VAT). In addition the Company also incurred the audit fee on behalf of its

subsidiary Canada Life SIPP Trustee Limited of £5,000 excluding VAT (2018: £nil).

11. Investment expenses and charges

Year ended Year ended

31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018

£'000 £'000

Investment management expenses ' ' (1,670) (1,738)
Equity release fees: (1,526) (1,622)
Total from discontinued operations. ) (3,196) (3,360)

Eq{Jity release fees are payable to Stonehaven UK Ltd, a related undertaking wholly owned by MGM Advantage Holdings

Limited, for the origination of equity release mortgages.
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12. Income tax credit

¢ Year ended Year ended
31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018
) £°000 £000
a) Current year tax credit reported in profit or loss: )
Income tax credit attributable to continuing operations 537 616
Income tax (chargej/credit on attributable to discontinued operations (152) 5,145
Income tax credit L 385 5,761
b) Tax reported in other comprehensive income:
Income tax - UK corporation tax credit - -
Income tax credit - -
Total tax credit in the statement of profit or loss and other 38s 5.761
comprehensive income ) - !
c) Tax reported directly in equity:

* Income tax - UK corporat:on tax. credit 1,153 1,048
Income tax - UK corporation tax ad]ustments in respect of prior year (1) -
Income tax credit 1,152 1,048
d) Factors affecting the tax charge for the yea}:

The tax assessed for the year is the same as the standard rate of

corporation tax in the UK of 19% (2018 19%)

Loss on ordinary activities before tax - (2,827) (3,240)
Loss on ordinary activities mult|pI|ed by standard rate of corporation tax in 537 616
the UK of 19% (2018: 19%)

Income tax credit attributable to continuing operations . 537 . 616
Income tax (charge)/credit attributable to discontinued dperations (152) 5,145
Income tax credit 385 5,761

The Budget statement introduced the measure to maintain the main rate of corporation tax rate at 19% for the financial

* year beginning 1 April 2020. Accordingly, there will be no change to the Company's future corporation tax rate. As a result

of the Budget statement announcement, there was no significant impact to the Company’s income tax receivable.

13. Financial investments

31 Dec 2019

31 Dec 2018

£'000 £000

Debt instruments 1,136,233 987,268
OEIC and unit trust investments 771,777 673,402
Equity release mortgage assets 497,488 452,587
Classified as held for sale (2,405,498) -
Total. - .2,113,257
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13. Financial investments (cont.)

- Financial Instruments

All financial investments are classified at fair value through profit and loss. In accbrdancg with IFRS 13 - ‘Fair Value

measurement’, financial instruments at fair value have been classified into three categories:

e - Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

e Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices); and

¢ Level 3: Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable

inputs).

An analysis of all items of the Statement of Financial Position before allocating to assets and liabilities held for sale is set

out in the table below. Items are measured on either a recurring fajr value basis, whereby the fair value measurement.

hierarchy is given, or they are measured in accordance with IFRS 4 - ‘Insurance contracts’ or at ‘Other’ measurement

bases as disclosed within Note 1.

Fair value measurement I:::{:anci‘se ‘
As at 31 December 2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 IFRS 4 Other " Total
' £000 £°000 £°000 £'000 £000 £°000
Financial investments ’ . : . ’ ’
Debt Instruments - - 1,136,233 - - - 1,136,233
OEIC and unit trust investments 771,777 - - - - 771,777
Equity release mortgage assets - - 497,488 - - 497,488
) 771,777 1,136,233 497,488 - - 2,405,498
Other assets ' '

Right of use assets A - - - - 1,486 1,486
Reinsurance assets - - - 472,494 - 472,494
Insurance and other receivables - - - - 1,986 1,986
ﬁrr:;(;l:?atzig;: from related . . - . 8,199 8,1’99
Cash and cash equivalents - - - - 31,166 31,166
' - - ) - 472,494 42,837 515,331

Total assets 771,777 1,136,233 497,488 472,494 42,837 2,920,829

The Company’s policy is to assess pricing sources and other data feeds at the end of each reporting period.
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13. Financial investments (cont.)

. Insurance
falr value measurement contracts
As at 31 December 2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 IFRS 4 Other Total
‘ £000 ° £000  £000 £000 - £000 £'000
Liabilities .
Noq—_lipked insurance contract _ _ _ 1,477,843 - 1,477,843
liabilities :
L}mt:hpked insurance contract _ _ - 59,429 _ 59,429
liabilities . : _ E
Investment contract liabilities 522,617 ' - - - - 522,617
Deposits received from L - . _ 571,803 - 571,803
réinsurers
Amounts due to related _ _ R _ 313 313
undertakings ‘ .
Lease liabilities . . : 1,344 1,344
Other payables - - - - 3,374 3,374
Total liabilities N 522,617 - - 2,109,075 5,031 2,636,723
. . Insurance
-Fair value measure‘ment _contracts .
As at 31 December 2018 Level 1 - Level 2 Level 3 IFRS 4 Other Total
£'000 £'000 £000 £000 - . £'000 £000
Financial investments
Debt Instruments - 987,268 - - - 987,268
OEIC and unit trust investments 673,402 g - - - - 673,402
Equity release mortgage assets - - 452,587 ) - . - 452,587
673,402 987,268 452,587 - - 2,113,257
Other assets k - . ' .
Reinsurance assets - - L 464,301 - 464,301
Insurance and other receivables - - - - 2,698 2,698
Amounts due from related o St _ _ : 9,583 9,583
undertakings ) . . . :
Cash and cash equivalents - - - - 22,975 22,975
‘ - : - - 464,301 35,256 499,557

Total assets ' 673,402 987,268 452,587 464,301 35,256 2,612,814

MGM Advantage Life Limited 47



13. Financial investments (cont.)

Insurance

Fair value measurement contracts ‘

As at 31 December 2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 " IFRS 4 Other Total

Restated* £'000 ~ £'000 £°000 £000 £'000 £'000.

-Liabilities

Non-linked insurance contract, . : . _ 1,333,164 . 1,333,164

liabilities . . .

Unit-linked insurance contract _ _ . 56,815 _ 56,815

liabilities .

Investment contract liabilities 468,612 - - v - 5 468,612
. Deposits received from . _ _ 547,699 . - 547,699

reinsurers . _

Amounts due to related . - _ - S 352 352

undertakings

Insurance payables - - : - - . 1,535 1,535

Other payables . R ‘ - . - : - 3,813 3,813

Total liabilities 65;594 - - 2,340,336 5,931 2,412,221

*see note 25.

The Company'’s policy is to assess pricing sources and other data feeds at the end of each reporting period.

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2-and 3 during the year to 31 December 2019. The table below reconciles the

opening and closing amounts of Level 3 financial assets measured at fair value.

Qver-the-counter (OTC) de{ivative transactions and collateral support obligations are respectively, conducted and met,

under standardised ISDA (International Swaps and DerivativesAssoci‘ation, Inc. Master agreements and Credit Support

Annexes (CSAs)). All exchange traded derivative (ETDs) transactions and margin processes-are conducted in accordance

with the rules and regulations governing the relevant exchange on which the derivatives are traded. All derivative positions

were closed during 2018. -

A

Reconciliation of movements in Ieyel 3 finaricial instruments measured at fair value:

\

Equity release mortgage assets

) £000
As at 31 December 2018 452,587
New loans advanced , _31,350
Premium fee deducted from new loans advanced (1,526)
Loans redeemed ‘ (41,793)
R_evaluation gain repor;ed in the Statement of Profit or-Loss and Other Comprehensive 56.870
Ihcome . !
As at 31 December 2019 497,488

MGM Advantage Life Limited 48



13. Financial investments (cont.)

’

Total gains and losses included in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income that relate to
Level 3 classes of assets that were held during the reporting period:

_For the year ended 31 December 2019
: Equity release mortgage assets

£'000
Investment income - : 10,710
Unrealised loss ) . 50,950
Realised gains : : 5,920
Total for the year ended 31 December 2019 ) ) 67,580

Equity release mortgage asset valuation inputs

As there is no deep and liquid market in equity release assets it is necessary to value these assets using a model approach.
To the extent that observable inputs are not available a number of unobsérvable inputs are used. The unobservable inputs,
used in the measurement of equity rglease assets are: l ' .

- Rates of mortality and the risk of customer;s going inéo long term care

- Rates of voluntary loan redemption

- Iiates of interest cessation (i.e. switching from interest paying to interest roli-up);

- Expenses;

- Property dilapidation

- House price inflation (relativé to retail price inflation)

- House price volati’lity

The above assumptions are set after analysing historic experience and allowing for expected future trends. The mortality
assumptions are based on appropriate standard indus;ry tables, with allowance for futire improvements based on the

CMI (Continuous Mortality Investigations). 2018 model. Voluntary redemption and interest cessation assumptions take

account of the Company's recent experience analyses.

" Observable inputs used in the measurement of the equity release assets are:
- Future retail price inflation
- Risk free rates

- The initial loan balances

The latest value of the propertieé have been estimated by applying the change in the. quarterly Regional Halifax: house
price index'applicable to that property (depending on the location of the property) from the ou;iginal value assigned to the
property at policy i;mcep'tion date to the current valuation date. In addition, the property values also reflect any revaluations
of the original property subsequently done when the .policyholder requests for any further additional loans or transfers

the loan to a new property following a change of home.

The return on equity relea‘se. assets is adjustedbto allow for the risk that proceeds from selling the property upon an
involuntary redemption (i.e. redemption.on death or entry in to 'Long Term Care of the policyholder) are iﬁsufficient to
cover the policyholder’s outstanding loan balance at the time of redemption. This risk exists as the ERM contracts contéin
a No-Negative Equity Guarantee ("NNEG"), which means that the policyholder or their estate would not be liable for such

a shortfall and MGMA would incur a foregone expectation on the ERM contract. )
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13. Financial investments (cont.) L -

MGMA calculates this NNEG cost stochastically usinQ Monte Carlo simulation of possible future property values. The
inputs required (i.e. current house prices, future house price growth, house price volatility and sale/dilapidation cost)
are calibrated to available market data.”

The value of the equity release assets is determined by producing projected expected cashflows and then discounting
these at the risk free rate, at the valuation date, plus an additional spread. The additional spreads are set so that the

initial modeiled value of the loan is equal to the initial loan balance.

The fair value of equity rélease is also inherently uncertain as actual experience could differ from the assu'mptions'made
within the mark-to-model valuation: The fair value of Equity release mortgage assets at 31 December 2019 was £499m -
(2018: £453m). ’ '

The impacts of sensitivities on key drivers of the equity release assets fa'ir value are shown below.

At 31 December 2019

Changes in Increase in fair Decreasé in fair

assumptions value value

£000 £'000

Discount rate -/+50bps L 34,485 . (30,805)

Expenses © o -/+10% 7 360 (149)

Mortality rate : ' -/+5% ‘ ' 1,115 . (896)
Interest cessation rate +/-50% ' 1,127 (1,090)

Redemption rate : -/+50% 7,216 (6,080)

Property prices - +/-5% ) 2,748 - (2,940)

Property price volatility -/+2% ’ o . 7,317 " (7,794)

As at 31 December 2018 .

' Chang’es in Increase in fair Decrease in fair

assumptions value value

£'000 £'000

Discount rate -/+50bps’ 31,713 (29,067)
Expenses -/+10% 273 (273)

_Mortality rate -/+5% 281 (282)

Interest cessation rate +/-50% 696 (849)

Redemption rate -/+50% ' 2‘,125 (1,828)

Property prices +/-5% 2,186 (2,518)

Property price volatility - ’ -/+2% . 6,246 (6,923)

The sensiti\iity analysis has been carried out using the same actuarial h;lodel used to calculate the basebfair value. The

. analysis has been derived by changing each variable in isolation, with other éssumptions remaining constant.-In'reaIity,
such an event is unlikely due to correlation between the assumptions and other factors. It should also be noted that these
sensitivities are non-linear and the larger or smaller impacts cannot be interpolated or extrapolated from these resuits
without recognition of the inherent non-linearity. ’

Other limitations in the above sensitivity analysis include the use of hypothetical market movements to demonstrate
potential risk that only represents the,Company’s view of reasonably possible near-term market changes that cannot be
predicted with any certainty, and the assumption that there is a parallel shift in-interest rates at all durations.

-
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14, Investment in subsidiary

31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018

\
£000 - £'000-
Investment in Canada Life SIPP Trustee Limited Ordinary Shares ) - ' -
Investment in MGM Advantage Life Trustee Limited Ordinary -Shares - -
Classified as held for sale 4 i - -
Total ) ) : - -

On 7 May 2019 Caﬁada Life SIPP Trustee Company Limited was incorporated as a 100% owned subsidiary of the
Company with share capital of £1, subsequently changing its name to Canada Life SIPP Trustee Limited on 22 May 2019.
It operates as bare trustee for the Company’s SIPP product and its registered address is Canada Life Place, High Street,
Potters Bar, EN6 5BA. ’

MGM Advantage Life Trustee Limited, a 100% owned subsidiary, operates as a bare trustee fpr the Company's Partial
Internal Model and extension of its Matching Adjustment Portfolio to incorporate Equity Release Mortgage assets. The
registered address of MGM Advantage Life Trustee Limited is 110 Cannon Street, London, EC4N 6EU. MGM Advantage Life
Trustee Limited was included within the Part VII transfer of business to Canada Life Limited on 1 January 2020.

15, Reinsurance assets

31 Dec 2019 ’ 31 Dec 2018

£000 : £000
Reinsurers' share of long-term insurance contract liabilities 472;494 - 464,301
Classified as held for sale (472,494) . -

Total L ; - 464,301

Included within the reinsurance asset is a liability for contingent reinsurance premium fees payable to Hannover Re at
31 December 2019 is £23.5m (2018: £35.4m)... ' .

16. Insurance and other receivables

31°'Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018

£'000 £'000
Due from investment brokers 487 ’ ' 624
Other receivabies . - 1,499 2,074
Classified as held for sale V : (1,986) o -
Total : : - - : 2,698
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17. Related party transactions

Immediate parent undertaking )

The Company’s immediate parent undertaking is MGM Advantage Holdings Limited, a company that is domiciled and
incorporated in the United Kingdom. All of the Company’s ordinary share capital (net of reserve value) and perpetual debt
is held by MGM Advantage Holdings Limited. '

Ultimate parent undertaking .

Since 2 January 2018 The Company’s ultimate parent undertaking is Power Corporation of Canada a company that is
domiciled and incorporated in Canada. Before 2 January 2018 the Company’s ultimate parent undertaking was ICE
Acquisitions S.a r.l. a company that is domiciled and incorporated in Luxembourg.

Year end balances and transactions with related parties . )

In the financial year, transactions with related parties include all transactions with MGM Aqvantage Hold-ings Limited and
its subsidiary undertakings, MGM Advantage Services Limited; Stonehaven UK Ltd; Cana_da Life SIPP.Tfuste_e Limited and
MGM Advantagg'Life Trustee Limited (the MGMA Group). Since 2"January 2018 transactions with related parties also

" include The Canada Life Group (U.K.) Limited, Canada Life Asset Management Limited, and CLFIS (U.K.) Limited.

The following income/(payment) transactions were made with other Group companies:

Year ended

Year ended

31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018
. £'000 £'000
MGM Advantage Holdings Limited:
Management service fees (1,280) (2,080)
Issue o/f share capital and share premium ’ 84,000 ’ 30,000 .
Group relief tax recoverable (145) 800
Perpetual debt interest (6,061) (5,511)
’ ‘76,514 ' 23,209
MGM Advantage Services Limited:
Service fees for policy administration (10,303) (15,758)
Recharged expenses : (494) (1,742)
Group relief tax' payable - 228
(10,797) (17,272)
Stonehaven UK Ltd: , A L
Equity release investment expenses and administration-fees (1,527.) (1,622)
Group relief tax recoverable . 398 485
(1,129) (1,137)
MGM Advantage Life Trustee Limited :
Trustee fees (272) (273)
The Canada Life Group (U.K.) Limited:
Group relief tax recoverable (5,543) 5,543
Canada Life Limit\éd':
Group relief tax recoverable 6,813 ‘ -
Canada Life Asset Management Limited: )
" Investment expenses - ' (1,193) (686)
CLFIS (U.K.) Limited: . ‘
* Investment expenses (161) .- (191)
Total 64,232 9,193
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17. Related party transactions (cont.)

The following related party balances were due from/(to) related party undertakings.and outstanding at 31 December:

2019 " 2018
) £°000 £°000
Stonehaven UK Ltd: ) ) .
Equity release redemption receipts‘ . (152) ' 2,290
Group relief tax recoverable ' , : 883 485
731 2,775
MGM Advanfage Holdings Limited: ] .
Group relief tax recoverable . . - ) 655 800
MGM Advantage Life Trustee Limited: .
Trustee fees payable . : C _ (40) (137)
MGM Advantage Services Limited: ) . .
Service fees and recharges (payabie)/prepaid ’ : (165) i 478
The Canada Life Group (U.K.) Limited:
Group relief tax recoverable - -- 5,543
Canada Life Limited: )
Group relief tax recoverable ‘ . 6,811 -
Canada Life Asset Managerﬁer;t Limited: . ‘
Investment expenses : ) ’ (106) (172)
CLFIS (U.K.) Limited:
Investment expenses | - ) : - (56) .
‘Classified as held for sale : (7,886) ' -
Total - ' o . " 9,231

. The amounts outstanding are unsecured and will be settled in cash. No guarantees have been given or received. No

prowsnons have been made for doubtful debts in respect of the amounts owed by related parties.
Directors’ remuneration

During 2019 and 2018 the directors of the Company had their remuneration paid by CLFIS (U.K.) Limited and MGM
Advantage Services Limited, fellow subsidiaries of The Canada Life Group (U.K.) Limited. It is not considered practicable
to apportibn their emoluments between their services as directors of the Company and their services as directors of other
group undertakings; '

The total remuneration of the Company’s Directors’ are contained within the financial statements of MGM Advantage

Services Limited.
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18. Part VII transfer of long term insurance business to Canada Life Limited

‘As set out within the Strategic Report, pursuant to Part VII of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000, the entire
long-term business of the Company was transferred to Canada Life Limited on 1 January 2020 for a consideration of
£81.9m. In addition, all operational and business contracts between the Company, related companieé and various third:

parties, and relating to the transferred business, including reihsu{'ance, were also transferred to Canada Life Limited.

: The table below summarises the Statement of Financial Position of the Company at 31 December 2019, and sets out the
assets and liabilities of the Company which were subject to the Part VII transfer and valued on a held for sale basis.

Held for Sale

Notes 31 Dec 2019
" £'000
Financial Investments : 13 2,405,498
Investment in subsidiary . . ‘ 14 ’ C-
Right-of-use asset ) . . 26 ' . 1,486
Reinsurance assets ’ ) 15 . 472,494
Insurance and other receivables : 16 - 1,986
Amounts due from related undertakings ) . 17 8,199
Cash and cash equivalents o 19 30,896
Total assets cléssiﬁéd aS held for sale ' 2,920,559
-Non-linked insurance contract liabilities 1,477,843 A
Unit linked insurahce contract liabilities 59,429
Investment contract liabilities 522,607
Deposits received from reinsurers - ’ 21 : 571,803
Amounts due to related undertakiﬁgs 4 ‘ ' 17 ' ' ] 313
Lease liabilities ' 26 ' 1,344
Other payables . 24 . ‘ 3,114
Total liabilities classified as held for sale . 2,636,453
Cash flow information of discontinued operations: o
31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018
£'000 " £°000
Net cash flows from operating activities . ‘ o (72,508) . (30,463)
Net cash flows from investing activities ) - 3,120
Net cash flows from financing activities : 83,526 30,000

The net assets classified as held for sale of £284.1m were settled with a consideration of £81.9m giving a loss on disposa!
of held for sale assets and liabilities of £202.2m, which will be included in the 31 December 2020 financial results. This‘
loss primarily relates to the (fonsideration paid representing the fair market value of the business transferred, determined
on a Solvency II basis of valuation, resulting in a difference between the valuation of insurance contract liabilities and
associated reinsurance assets and liabilities which, in accordance with IFRS 5, were required to be valued on an IFRS 4
consistent basis of valuation. The valuation of all other assets and liabilities on a held for sale basis was consistent with

the,applicable IFRS accounting standard, and, there were no impairments arising.
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19. Cash and cash equivalents

31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018
£'000" £'000
Cash at bank 31,166 22,975
Classified as held for sale -(30,896) -
Total 270 22,975
20. Equity
31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018
£°000 £'000
Allotted, issued and fully paid ordinary shares 56,620 56,620
Ordinary shares (nominal value of £1) 41,620 41,620
Ordinary share premium* 114,000 30,000
Ordinary shares converted from deferred shares (nominal value of £1) 15,000 '15,000
Other reserves?_ (15,000) (15,000)
Distributable capital contribution reserve? 24,000 24,000
Retained earnings’ 38,107 44,662
Perpetual debts 66,379 60,311
Total 284,106 200,593

The Ordinary shares are not restricted in respect of receiving distributions paid by the Company and are entitled to one
vote per share held. On a return of assets on a winding up or disposal, or reduction of capital or otherwise (other than on
a redemption or purchase of Shares) any assets of the company are available for distribution to the ordinary shareholders
according to the number of shares held. '

'During 2019 MGM Advantage Holdings lelted purchased six additional ordinary shares of £1 each in the Company for a

i

cash consuderamon of £84m.

The other reserve is in respect of the deferred shares that were conve.rted to Ordinary shares on 5 December, 2014
(desngnated as Ordlnary shares converted from deferred shares’ above). This reserve reduces the value of the converted

Ordinary shares to £1, as they have negligible value within the Group.

3 The distributable capital contribution reserve represents capital amounts paid by its immediate parent company, MGM
Advantage Ho'ldings Limited. This, retained earnings and perpetual debt are only distributable if sufficient regulatory

capital is held.

*The retained earnings of the Company are the accumulated transfers of compr_enensive income and debt interest from

each accounting perlod net of tax.

5The perpetual debt is ‘held by |ts immediate parent company, MGM Advantage Holdings Limited. The debt accrues interest
at 10% per annum with annual compounding on unsettled interest amounts. The interest ¢an be either repaid or is

~annually capitalised into the value of the debt.

MGM Advantage Life Limited 55



21. Deposits received from reinsurers

In respect of the EA and RGA products written by the Company.before 31 December 2015, premiums receivable are

ceded to Hannqver Re in return for the transfer of S0% of the mortality risk associated with the product. The reinsurance -

premiums payable are deposited back to the Company to provide counterparty risk mitigation. Premiums written after

31 December 2015 are reinsured through a 75% longevity swap agreemen-t with Hannover Re.

’

31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018
£°000 £000
Collateral deposits for:
Enhanced annuity 571,803 547,699
Classified as held for sale (571,803) -
Total - .547,699
22. Income tax payable
) 31.Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018
£'000 £000
At 1 January (231) 926
Adjustment to prior year tax - (5)
Net UK corporation tax payments/(refunds) . 231 (914)
UK corporation tax credit as recorded in the statement of profit or loss '
e . 384 5,766
and other comprehensive income (see note 12)
Income tax on equity items 1,152 1,048
Unfranked investment income tax paid ' (25) (10)
Intra-group tax loss surrenders (1,511) (7,042)
Total - (231)
- 23. Insurance payables
| - 31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018
"~ £'000 £000
Premiums pending allocation; due to policyholders - . 1,535
Total - 1,535
24, Other payables
v AY
31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018
£'000 £'000
Reinsurance amotints payable to Hannover Re 1,530 855
Invesﬁments purchased for subsequent settlement 418 1,316
Other taxation 1,031 . 944
Other payables 115 460
Accruals * 280 238
Classified as held for sale (3,114) -
Total 260 3,813
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25. Restatement of insurance contract to investment conttact

The 2018 financial statements have been restated to reflect that the insurance risk arising on FIA bljsiness reinsured
inwards for Scottish Friendly Assurance is insignificant. As at 31 December 2018 £402,658k (2017: £456,225k) was
included as unit-linked insurance contract liabilities, however, given thei insignificant insiJrance_risk the reinsured

business has been reclassified to.investment contract liabilities and deposit accounted accordingly.

As a result of this change in classification the amounts recognised in 2018 for inWard reinsurance premiums of £932k,

reinsurance claims paid of £(34,181k), and change in insurance contract liabilities of £53,567k have all been deposit
accounted. The result of this reclassification is recogﬁise a change in value of investment contracts of £(20,318)k with’

no net impact on the loss before tax.

26. Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities

Right-of-use assets

31 Dec 2019 , 31 Dec 2018
£'000 " £'000
Recognition after lease renegotiation 1,802 .-
Depreciation expense for the year (316) ' . -
" Classified as held for sale (1,486). ' ’ . -
Total . o= : -
Lease liabilities .

31 Dec 2919 ) 31 Dec_2018'

£'000 - €000
Recognition after lease renegotiation ' 1,802 o . -
Lease payments . - ) ~(477) A -
Interest expense” 19 ' -

Classified as held for sale (1,344) ' ‘ -

Total : ) ' . - . . -

Lease payments relate to a lease for use of office property and equipment. The lease for office property was originélly

taken as a 10 year period from 17 November 2014, with an option to terminate after 5 years, subject to 6 months advance

notice being provided to the landlord. In 2019 the lease was ‘renegotialted to insert a new break clause in at 16 November
2021 with a rent free périod bétwéen 17 Nc;vember 2021 and 16 April 2022, In 2018 it was expected that the option
wéuld be taken to terminate the lease in. 2019, however, during 2019 it became clear it was not viable to exit the lease
at that point and the right-of-use asset and lease liability were recognised at that point for the full remaining lease
incorporating the rent free period. The lease was included in the Pért VII transfer of assets and liabilities to Canada Life

* Limited.
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27. Risk management and controls '

The Company issues contracts that accept insurance risk in return for a premium, which is invested in a range of assets.
The Company is exposed principally to market (including credit spread risk), insurance (primarily longevity risk) and
liquidity risks through its financial assets, financial liabilities and policyholder Iiabilities, including those that it reinsures.

The various risks -and their corresponding mitigation actions are set out below.

The Company’s Risk Management Framework comprises a range of elements which collectively ensure the risks to which
the Company is exposed are effectively identified, assessed, managed and monitored within the constraints set by the

Board.

The Company applies a risk taxonomy aimed at ensuring that all risks that could affect the organisation are considered.
" These include the following: market risk, credit risk, insurance risk, counterparty risk, liquidity risk, expense risk,

operational risk, reputational risk, strategic risk and conduct risk.
The Company’s Risk Governance Framework utilises a three-lines of defence risk governance model whereby:
*  Responsibility for the management of risk is embedded within the operating business i.e. the first line;

e The second line is made up, of the Risk Function and the Compliance Function with formal Risk Committees

providing oversight and challenge of risk management processes; and
e Internal Audit and the Audit Committee provide independent assurance of these processes to the Boafd.

The risk management process of the Company is supported by a 'Risk Register’ and 'Risk Events Process’. The Risk
Register documents all risks, an assessment of their matefiality, the owner resp;)nsible for the management of the risk
and the controls in place. A Risk Event is an operational occurrence arising as a result of iﬁadequate or failed internal
processes, personnel, systems or external events. They can encompass a variety of issues from minor technology outages
throﬁgh to issues relating to Treating Customers Fairly (TCF) or matters that end up resultingAin actual losses to the
business. Risk Events are reported and managed by the business but monitored by both Risk and Compliance to ensure
that actions are taken to mitigate the event and that controls have been reviewed and updated to reduce the chances of
reoccurrence. Details on the volume of events and any significant events are reported through the internal governance

process to ensure that senior management and Board have the appropriate level of awareness of Risk Events.
Insurance risk

Insurance risk covers longevity, mortality, morbidity and customer behaviour risk. The principal insurance risk is longevity
risk arising from contracts providing guaranteed lifetime benefits sold by the Company, i.e. the annuity business. -
Insurance risks are managed by the application of the Risk Ména’gement Framework. A number of standards are
maintained to support effécgive risk management though the identification, documentation ‘and communication of the
Company'’s insurance risk strategy. The Company has a documented risk strategy expressing risk preferences and defined

financial limits for exposure to insurance risk for core product lines.

The Company governs exposure to insurance risk through its Risk, Compliance and Investment Committee (RCIC) which
recommends appropriate exposure limits to the Board for approval. Risk identification takes plaée across a product’s
lifecycle. Inherent risks are identified as part of product design and pricing prior to product launch. Subsequent to product
launch, risk identification for insurance risk is made through the monitoring of experience to aid the identification of other
risk drivers or fact'ors' which help predict potential outcomes for longevity, customer behaviour and mortality risks. The

Lmderwriting criteria is aligned with the Company’s risk appetite, with additional review for high risk cases.
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27. Risk management and controls (cont.)

The Company’s core measure of exposure to insurance risk is capital at risk. Capital at risk is calculated in terms of the
potentialvadverse deviation of actual experience to a best estimate of liabilities arising from each product line of business.
The best estimate of liabilities are informed by actuarial investigations into mortality, morbidity and custome;' behaviour
with analysis of deviations from assumptions underpinning the pricing and existing reserves of products. This is -

supplemented with information from the Company’s reinsurers.

Risk momtonng and reportlng processes are also in place to ensure that those responsible for the management of
insurance risk have the information required to fulfil their responsibilities. This includes monthly management information
on actual versus expected experience, pricing analysns (such as new business levels, mix of business and margins on new ’

business) and annual tasks of assessing the capltal requirements.

The Company has reinsurance arrangements in place with Hannover Re to mitigate the Ignge\}ity risks that are outside
tolerance. The current reinsurance strategy is to share the longevity'risks arising in respect of the énnﬁity business with
Hannover Re. (50% for business in force at 31 December 2015 and increased to 75% for new business from 1 January
2016 onwards). The reinsurance arrangements also allow the Company to draw on the wealth of expertise and experience
of the reinsurer, in setting the pricing an"1d téchnical provision longevity assumptions. The'interest's of both the Company

and Hannover Re are therefore aligned. -

For Equity Release Mortgage (ERM) assets, the No Negative Equity Guarantee (NNEG) and the cash flows profile are also
impacted by customer behaviour (through early redemptions- and ‘interest cessations), mortality and morbidity.

Redemption rates are monitored on a regular basis.
ERMs and annuity sales are subject to weekly monitoring against budgets and are repbrted to Pricing Committee.
Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss or of adverse change in the financial situation, resuiting directly or indirectly from fluctuations
in the level of and in the volatility of market prlces of assets, liabilities and financial instruments. Market risk comprises
credit spread risk, property risk, interest rate risk (lncludlng asset liability mlsmatch risk), market concentration risk,

equity risk, currency risk and inflation risk.

The Company has policies and procedures in place to control and manage the major components of market risk and
provide a return to policyholders in line with expectations, including managing the duration and profile of assets against

corresponding policyholder liabilities.
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27. Risk management and controls (cont.)

- Credit spread risk
Credit risk exposure arises from the following:

e  Debt instruments - the Company holds debt instruments which are exposed to credit spread risk and default
risk. .

Credit spread is the additional yield on corporate bonds relative to comparable risk-free rates, and primarily

répresents compensation for the risk of default and downgrades and an illiquidity premium.
There are two main components of credit spread ri;k: '

e  Credit'spread changes - credit spreads widen (or narrow) as bond prices fall (or rise), which can be the
result of changes in economic conditions, market sentiment or faotors specific to the bond including
‘downgrades, the impact of whioh is 'rniﬁgated through the use of a ‘buy to maintain’ strategy by the
Company.

e  Counterparty credit default - the risk of default puts the capital and interest of debt instruments at risk
of repayment to the Company, this is mltlgated by mvestlng in high grade quality assets.

»  ERMs - credit risk exposure for loans secured by mortgages against residential property is considered within
‘Property risk’ further in this note. The Company has defined polu:les and procedures in place to help control the

significant components of credit risk.

The Company has defined policies and procedures in place to help control the significant components of credit risk.

~Summary of principal assets bearing credit risk exposure for the Company, which are neither past due or
" impaired:

: 31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018
. . £'000 £'000
Debt instruments (note 13) 1,136,233 987,268
Equity release mortgage assets (note 13) 497,488 452,587
Reinsurance assets (note 15) 472,494 464,301
Total 2,106,215 1,904,156
31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018
. £'000 £'000

Assets with long term credit ratings!:
AAA 44,686 44,525
AA+ 2,147 - 2,350.
AA 537,640 491,310
AA- 45,034 57,415
A+ 45,000 57,192
A . 183,127 163,166
A- 301,568 241,911
BBB+ 252,780 ) 24_7,902
BBB . 190,305 139,619
B8BB- 6,440 6,179
Below BBB or not rated 497,488 452,587
Total 2,106,215 1,904,156

ICredit ratings are provided by nominated external credit assessment institutions (ECAI_). Our nominated ECAI include Standard & Poor's

Credit/Market Services Europe Limited, Fitch Ratings Limited, andAMoody’s Investors Service Ltd.
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27. Risk management and controls (cont.)

Property risk » )

The Company is exposed to both falls in residential property prices and increases in residential property price volatility
through the NNEG in respect of the ERMs (see note 13). Property risk is managed and avssessed through monitoring of
house prices and house price indices, geographical spread of properties and loan to value ratios.

Interest rate risk (including asset liability mismatch risk)

Interest rate risk is the risk of loss resulting from the sensitivity of the values of assets, liabilities and financial instruments

“to cﬁanges to interest rate levels, term structure of interest rates or volatility of interest rates. The impact of interést rate
changes on the asset values and best estimate liability values will give rise to a profit or loss depending on the extent to
which asset arid liability cash flows are matched. To the extent possible the Company seeks to materially match asset and
liability cash flows through the holding of corporate'bdnds and ERMs with a duration similar to annuity cash flows.
However, changes in interest rate will also impact the level of surplus through changes to the value of additional capital
required to be held (to cover the Risk Margin and the SCR). '

The Solvency II regulatory baéis has some exposu're to interest rates through the Risk Margin, net of the impact of the.
"Transitional Measure on Technical Provisions (TMTP). The initial amount of the TMTP is determined as at day 1 of-the
application of ghe Solvency II directive (i.e. 1 January 2016), as the difference between the Solvency II technical provisions
(after deduction of reinsurance recoverables) and thé Solvency I Pillar 2 technical provisions (also after the deduction of
reinsurance recoverables). This amount is then run-off linearly over 16 years. There is a requirement to recalculate every
2 years or when the risk profile of the organisation changes significantly. The purpose of the TMTP is to provide a smooth
transition from the old Solvency I regime to the new Solvency II regime. The ability of the Company to recalculate the

—

TMTP in relation to market/business changes is limited by the need for regulatory approval.

Market concentration risk

Concentration risk is due to a lack of diversification within the portfolios, for example too much exposure to a particular
bond issuer or to a particular sector. Exposure limits for individual issuers are set and monitored reqularly. Limits are also

monitored for sector concentrations and other concentrations (e.g. geographical and asset class) are reported regularly.

The exposure to currency and inflation risk is minimal but processes are in place to assess, manage, monitor and report -

on these risks.
Equity price risk

The .Company is indireét_ly exposed' to equity price risk as a result of its holdings in Open /Ended Investment Companies
(OEIC) and Unit Trust Equity fund investments through the value of future management fees on unit linked business. An
equity market movement of 10% in either direction is immaterial for the Company. ‘
Counterparty Risk

Counterparty risk is the potential loss of earnings or capital arising from the inability or unwillingness of a counterparty
to meet its contractual obligations to the Company. Exposure to counterparty risk arises primarily through reinsurance
counterparty default risk, from the reinsurance agreements that the Company has with Hannover Re and also from

investment counterparty risk and from certain other asset holdings (e.g. deposits). .

The Company follows a set of principles when selecting reinsurance counterparties and procedures are in place for
assessing and monitoring the creditworthiness of reinsurance counterparties. This includes a rigorous selection process
for the reinsurer, seeking collateral arrangements to help manage any interdependencies with longevity risk, ensuring

that the contracts are legally enforceable and setting appropriate reinsurance exposure limits.
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27. Risk management and controls (cont.)

Liquidity risk X .

Liquidity risk is the risk of the Company being unable to meet its financial obligations when they fall due. These are
ies. These liabilities are backed by cash

u:Bm« y long term obligations (in excess of 12 months) to pay annuity liabi
flows from 5<mmn:._m_._ﬁ principally in corporate bonds and ERM. assets. Assets are selected such nzmn asset and liab _Q.
cash flows are reasonably matched in timing, and, that there are expected to be sufficient asset nwm: flows to meet nrm
bility outgo when due. At least 50% of the enhanced and RGA annuity liabilities are reinsured. The Company’s

obligations in respect of its Flexible Investment Annuity (FIA, now closed to new business) and drawdown component of

TRA do not present liquidity risk as these are closely matched and readily realisable assets are held.

The illiquidity of ERM assets and the potential illiquidity of corporate bonds in a market mn._.mmm event are considered when

assessing the liquidity requirements for the Company.

Controls are in U_mnm to ensure active management of both long term and short term liquidity risks _:n_cn___._m n_._m.
establishment of Red Amber Green (RAG) based liquidity management information metri s.

_uo___us::n approval of the PIM for.credit spread risk, the Trust was established to enable the use of ERMs within the MA.

The Trust issued Senior (fixed) and Junior (residual) notes supported by the underlying asset cash flows. The Trust is also
subject to liquidity risk from the difference between the cash inflow from the underlying ERM assets and its obligations to

the MA portfolio. The Trust has been designed to be able to pay its liabilities under significant stresses to mn_.._m<m an AA
rating and an ear-marked liquidity facility has been set up in the non- -MA portfolio, to which the Trust has access, to 3m__u

ensure the continuation of these payments.

Following the Part VII n_‘m:m_“m_‘ the main _EL ty risk arises from the risk of not being able to recover the amounts owed

recoverable on demand and the

for the mm_‘n VII from fellow group company Canada Life Limited. However, this amount i
counterparty has a strong regulatory capital position. * ’

Expense risk N , . .
Expense risk refers to the risk om.m change in value caused by the fact that the timing and/or the amount of expenses
incurred differs from those expected, for example, expenses assumed for pricing basis. '

MGM Advantage Services Limited provides life insurance management services, covering both new business acquisition
and policy maintenance, to the Company. Therefore, the Company’s exposure to expense risk refates primarily to its
obligations in relation to the in-force portfolio of long term insurance contracts and the assets held. in relation to these |
contracts. Expense risk is rigorously controlled and monitored closely through the management and reporting of actuat
and planned expenditure and n:_‘mcm: the periodic assessment of Expense risk capital.

Operational risk

Operational risk arises from potential failures or shortcomings of the Company's processes and systems; such failures or
shortcomings may be nm:mmn_.g external events or by employees. Exposure to operational risk results from either normai
day-to-day operations or an unanticipated Am<m:n and can have material financial and/or reputational consequences.
Operational risk includes risk exposures arising from people, infrastructure, process, systems, legal/regulatory, fraud and
outsourcing. Operational risk also contributes to conduct risk. Operational risk is managed on an ongoing basis within the
business; m_.._n supported by the bi-annual Risk and Control Self-Assessment (RCSA) process. Regular reporting of key
operational metrics takes place, including the monitoring of risk events.

The most significant operational risk to the Company is therefore outsourcer failure, either that the outsourcing providers
fail to nm_:.\m_. the agreed services, or fail to deliver them at the required standard, or fail to deliver them within expenses
allowed for in the valuation of policy liabilities. All outsourcer contracts are overseen by assigned contract owners who are
responsible for managing the relationship. The performance of outsourced suppliers is monitored regularly against service
level agreement standards, with any ongoing issues addressed by the contract owner and potentia <. considered an
indicator of expense risk. .
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27. Risk management and controls (cont;)

Reputational risk

Reputational risk relates to the potential for loss to occur. as a result of existing and/or future customers or distributors
losing confidence in the Company, leading to lower levels of new business for TRA. This risk is managed within the business
on an on-going basis in a number of ways; including through regular risk review meetings with key business personnel

and through the bi-annual RCSA process.
Strategic risk

Strategic risk relates to the ;isk of the current and pros;pective impact on earnings or capital arising from adverse business
decisions, improper implementation of decisions, or lack of resporisiveness to industry challenges. These risks are
identified by the business and Ioéged in the risk register. They are monitored and managed by the risk owner and reporting
on Key Strategic risks is taken to Group Executive Management Committee (GroupCo), Risk, Compliance and Investment

Committee (RCIC) and the various Boards with the business planning.
Conduct risk

Under the risk strategy, the Company seeks to avoid conduct risk through the delivery of fair customer outcomes, market
integrity or competition. This risk is managed within the business on an on-going basis and through the Customer
Advantage Steering Group. Monthly reporting on the delivery of fair customer outcomes, such as complaint volumes and

customer care metrics, is part of the Company’s governance process and is reported to various committees and Boards.
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28. Available capital reslburce's (unaudited)

The Company is required to hold capital or a level of financial resources that do not fall below a minimum level as

determined in accordance with the PRA regulations and EU directives for insurance and other PRA regulated business.

The capital of the Company includes ordinary shares, perpetual debt, distributable capital contribution reserves and
retained earnings. In order to reconcile capital or available financial resources on an IFRS basis (as set out in note 20) to
either a Sblvency I or Solvency II basis, a number of adjustments are required. These include deductions for inadmissible
assets, valuation differences on policyholder Iiabilifies, including prudent margins required on a regulatory basis, the
imp_éct of transitional measures (relevant to the implementation of Solvency II only) and any relevant deferred tax impact
arising as a resul_t from these adjustments. Under Solvency 1I, transitional measures allow firms to increase their level of
policyholder liabilities to the level required from Solvency I to Solvency II over a 16 year period for policies in force as at
1 January 2016. The Solvency II position of the Company is:

Solvency II Position: .
31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018

£'000 - £'000
) (unaudited) (unaudited)
_ Analysis of Eligible Own Funds ' , S
Tier 1 - unrestricted : ) .
Ordinary share capital 41,6.20 41,620
Share premium ) 114,000 . 30,000
Reconciliation reserve : 31,078 88,302
~_Total Tier 1 ' 186,698 . ] 159,922
Tier 2 ) . . .
Subordinated liabilities . s ' 66,379 60,311
Total Tier 2 S . 66,379 o 60,311
Total Own Funds ) 253,077 . 220,233
Solvency Capital Requirement o ) 205,329’ ) 161~,962
Excess Solvency II Own Funds : : 47,748 © 58,271
Solvency Ratio ' . 123% © 136%

The Company considers its risk appetite in context of the Solvency 1I regulatory regime by maintaining a éapital buffer
above its Solvency II regulatory Solvency Capital Requirement (SCR). The SCR reflects a level of financial resources that
enable insurance undertakings to absorb significant losses and provide reasonable assurance to its policyholders that
paymenfs will be made as they faI'I due. Including the effects of the Part VII transfer of insurance business on 1% January
2020, the Company is solvent on a Solvency II regulatory basis, as whilst overall capital held was significantly reduced, )
the SCR of the Company was also significantly reduced. The Company will continue to be regulated under the Solvency

11 requlatory regime until its insurance permissions are removed.

’
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28. Available capital resources (unaudited) (cont.)

The Company continually manages and monitors its capital position from a regulatory perspective, by reference to the
performance of its assets and liabilities and by giving due consideration to: ) T

e any potential future capital issuances;

. any opportunity to repay or redeem debt capital;

. results of projections made in the Company’s Own Risk and Solvency Assessment (ORSA);

¢ how any lssuance, redemption or repayment, or other variation in the valuation of capital may affect the
application of limits on tiers of capital from a regulatory perspective; and '

« how applying a distribution policy will affect the capital of the Company.

The capital position of the Company. is also projected, based on differing scenarios, over a 5 year period and capital
management actions are considered carefully. Planned new business sales are an input to capital management actions
and the business plan to ensure that the de5|red rlsk appetite is malntalned

Other risks that influence the capital management of the business include:

e Credit stress - whereby exposure to widening of credlt spreads and actual defaults due to investments held
predominately in corporate bonds by the Company, mcrease capital requirements.

e Risk free rates - the Company is exposed to falls in risk free

e New business margins and sales volumes - these can affect the balance sheet as new business is capital
consumptive so higher sales than planned can reduce capital faster than expected in the absence of any increase

in margin.

Throughout the. accounting year, the Company complied with regulatory imposed solvency capital requirements.
29. Ultimate parént company

The immediate parent company of MGM Advantade Life yimited is MGM Advantage Holdings Limited, a company
incorporated in the United Kingdom. The controlling party and ultimate parent company, which is also the parent
company of the largest'gr'oup of companies for which co'nsolidated financial statements are drawn up and of which the
Company is a member, is Power Corporation of Canada, a company incorporated in Canada. The parent cc;mpany of ~
the smallest group for which consolidated financial statements are drawn up and of which the Company is a member,

is The Canada Life Assurance Company, a company incorporated in Canada.

Copies of the group financial statements for both The Canada.Life Assurance Company (330 University Avenue, Toronto,
Ontario, Canada, M5G 1R8) and Power Corporation of Canada (751 Victoria Square Montréal, Quebec, Canada, H2Y
213) can be obtalned from the Company’s registered office. ’

The ultimate parent undertaking of the Company until 2 January 2018 was ICE Acquisitions S.3 r.l., a company
incorporated in Luxembourg. ‘
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30. Post balance sheet events

On 1 January 2020 the Company completed a Part VII transfer of all its long-term ihsurance‘business to Canada Life
Limited, details of whiéh as set out within the Strategic Report and note 18 to these financial statements. The net assets
of the long-term insurance business at 31 December 2019 was £284.1m. The transaction was performed at a fair market.
value on the t;as'is of a Solvency II valuation consistent with that reported at 31 December 2019, receiving £81.9m
consideration, whilst leaving cash df £0.2m to cover the short term commitments as a SIPP operator. This resulted in
a loss on disposal in 2020 of £202.2m which will be recognised in the financial results in 2020 and is not expected to

give rise to any tax charge or benefit to the Company.

The consideration for the transfer was settled by a £75m Promissory Note, which was issued by Canada Life Limited to
the Company, payable upon demand and bearing interest equivalent to similar short-dated obligations, and, the

remainder of £6.9m to be settled in cash.

"The ongoing coronavirus péndemic (COVID-19) is an emerging risk to which the Company is exposed. The Cdmpany is
monitoring the situation closely and has made preparations to ensure that it will continue to operate effectively and -
ensu‘ie the safety and well-being of customers, Group employees and wider communities. S‘ervicle continuity plans are
in operation, with Group employees working remotely. to maintain service to customers. The Company continues to

' review service sténdards and.hotd regular communication with outsource providers, and their response to the pandemic

has been robust and highly collaborative and they continue to provide full services to our customers.

- After the Part VII transfer .the Company has net assets of_£81.9m consisting of cash-and amounts owed from a fellow
group combany, Canada I;ife Limited, for the Parf VII transfer which is payable on demand. The impact of COVID-19 on
the post Part VII Balance sheet of the Company is not sig'nificant. After the Part VII tfénsfer, on 1 January 2020, the
Company’s Minimum Capital Requirement (‘MCR’)‘ solvency ratio ‘was 498% (unaudited), with the Solvency Capital
Requil;ement ('SCR’) being lower than the MCR. The Company currently continues to operate within Solvency II
reguiatqi'y capital guidelines and in ex.cess of the MCR and SCR. Since the Part VII transfer the Company has applied to
the PRA/FCA to change its regulatory permissions from an insurer to a MiFID investment firm, entirely requlated by the
FCA which would'have lower appliéable solvency requirements. The Company considers it has sufficient capital and
‘liquidity to continue operafing for the foreseeable future even if growth in the SIPP product is significantly slower than
anticipated as a result of COVID-19.

The outbreak is having an impact on global economies and markets to which the Company ié exposed and should this
impact be sustained, or lead to adversé impacts in sales or withdfawals, it will continue‘ to impact on the Company’s
performance. These impacts will depend on future developments, which are highly uncertain. The Company has robust
goverr‘@ance structures and processes in blace which support continuous monitoring of the Company’s solvency position
based on up to date market information. :

The Corﬁpany considers both events to be non-adjusting post balance sheet events under IAS 10.
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